
 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

1 ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20 

 
DIRECTORS’ REPORT  
 
Dear Shareholders,  
 
Your Directors are pleased to present the 19th (Nineteenth) Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company 

together with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020. 

 
FINANCIAL RESULTS 

                                                                                                (Rs. in Lacs)         
PARTICULARS  STANDALONE CONSOLIDATED 

2019-20 2018-19 2019-20 2018-19 

Total Revenue  49061.56 69026.83 53922.05 69216.55 

Profit Before Tax (PBT) 976.49 1651.33 1052.80 1597.59 

Less: Tax Expenses 

- Current Tax  310.00 655.00 310.00 657.43 

- Deferred Tax  (203.69) (35.33) (116.90) 107.40 

Profit for the period  870.18 1031.66 859.70 832.76 

Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) (194.38) (0.24) (259.43) 98.89 

Total Comprehensive Income for the 
period  

675.80 1031.42 600.26 931.65 

Balance brought forward from previous 
year 

5176.32 4144.89 5044.65 4113.01 

Total Amount available for appropriation  5852.12 5176.31 5644.91 5044.66 
 

Appropriations:     

Transfer to General Reserve - - - - 

Surplus Carried to Balance Sheet 5852.12 5176.31 5644.91 5044.66 

Total 
 

5852.12 5176.31 5644.91 5044.66 

 
STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND FUTURE OUTLOOK 
 

Kindly refer to ‘Management Discussion and Analysis Report’ which forms a part of this Annual Report. 
 

CHANGES IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY 
 

There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company during the year under review.  

 
DIVIDEND 
 

In view of the planned business growth, your Directors deem it proper to preserve the resources of the Company for its future 
and therefore do not propose any dividend for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2020. 

TRANSFER TO RESERVES 
 
The Board did not propose any amount for transfer to the General Reserve. 
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CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL  
 

The paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company as on 31st March, 2020 stood at Rs. 655.34 Lacs. During the year under 
review, the Company has not issued any further shares. 

 
DETAILS PERTAINING TO SHARES IN SUSPENSE ACCOUNT  
 

Details of shares held in the demat suspense account as required under Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (hereinafter referred to as ”Listing 

Regulations”) forms a part of the Corporate Governance Report. 
 

DETAILS UNDER SECTION 67(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AS ‘THE ACT’,) IN 
RESPECT OF ANY SCHEME OF PROVISIONS OF MONEY FOR PURCHASE OF OWN SHARES BY EMPLOYEES OR BY 
TRUSTEES FOR THE BENEFIT OF EMPLOYEES 
 
There was no such instance during the year under review.  

 
OPERATIONS AND BUSINESS PERFORMANCE  
 
The spread of COVID-19 has severely impacted businesses around the globe. In many countries, including India, there has 

been severe disruption to regular business operations due to lockdowns, disruptions in transportation, supply chain, travel 
bans, quarantines, social distancing and other emergency measures. The operations in the overseas subsidiaries of the 

Company situated in Nigeria and UAE have also been disrupted and the demand for product in those countries has dropped 
as never before. The Company has made necessary disclosure in terms of Regulation 30 of the Listing Regulations to the Stock 

Exchanges. The management is evaluating the situation very closely and necessary steps are being taken. The Company has 

resumed its operations / business activities with reduced manpower strength as per the directives of State Government and 
Central Government guideline, as applicable and is also adhering to all preventive measure as per various Government 

directives. The Company has evaluated its liquidity position & recoverability and carrying values of its assets and has 
concluded that no material adjustments are required at this stage in the financial results.  

 
The details of operation and business performance of the Company has been elaborated in the ‘Management Discussion and 

Analysis Report’ forming part of this Annual Report.  

 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under Regulation 34(2)(e) read with Para 
B to Schedule V of the Listing Regulations forms part of this Annual Report. 

 
DETAILS RELATING TO MATERIAL VARIATIONS 

 
The Company has not issued any prospectus or letter of offer during the last five years and as such the requirement for 

providing the details relating to material variation is not applicable to the company for the year under review.  
 
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 
WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT 

 
There is no material change and commitment of the company during the period between the end of the financial year 2019-20 

and the date of this report which can affect the financial position of the Company for the year under review.  
 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETRUN 
 
The extract of Annual Return as on 31st March, 2020 in the prescribed Form MGT-9, pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Act, read 

with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, forms part of this Director’s Report and marked 

as Annexure- “A”, a copy of the same is also uploaded on the Company’s website and the weblink thereto is  
http://www.manaksiasteels.com/pdf/MGT-9_2019-20.pdf 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
 
The Company follows the corporate governance guidelines and best practices sincerely, and discloses timely and accurate 

information regarding the operations and performance of the Company. 
 

Pursuant to Regulation 34 read with Para C to Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, a Report on Corporate Governance along 

with a certificate from the Statutory Auditors of the Company confirming compliance with the conditions of the Corporate 
Governance is forming part of this Director’s Report and marked as Annexure-“B”. 

 
NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

The details of number of meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company held during the year have been provided in the 
Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Directors’ Report. 

 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
 
Based on the framework of Internal Financial Controls (IFC) and compliance systems established and maintained by the 

Company, work performed by the internal auditors, statutory auditors, cost auditors, secretarial auditors and the reviews 
performed by management and the relevant Board Committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion 

that the Company’s IFC were adequate and effective during Financial year 2019-20. 

 
Accordingly, pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) and 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors, to the best of its knowledge and ability, 

confirms that: 
a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2020, the applicable accounting standards had 

been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any; 
b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that 

are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at the end of the 

financial year 2019-20 and of the profit of the Company for that period; 
c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 

the provisions of the Act, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities; 

d) the annual accounts had been prepared on a going concern basis; 
e) the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial 

controls were adequate and operating effectively;  

f) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 
systems are adequate and operating effectively.  

 
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL  
 

Changes in Directors  
 

The Company had appointed Mr. Ajay Kumar Chakraborty (DIN: 00133604); Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri (DIN: 00206157) and 
Mrs. Smita Khaitan (DIN: 01116869) as Independent Directors of the Company in the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting (EGM) 

of the Company held on 17th November, 2014 for a fixed term of five years upto the conclusion of Annual General Meeting 
(hereinafter referred to as “AGM”) to be held for the financial year 2018-19. 
 

Mr. Ajay Kumar Chakraborty, Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri and Mrs. Smita Khaitan were re-appointed by the shareholders as 
Independent Directors, not liable to retire by rotation, by way of passing of special resolution in the 18th AGM of the Company 

held on 25th September, 2019, for a second term of five consecutive years w.e.f. 26th September, 2019. 
 

Appropriate resolution has been passed by the shareholders at the 18th AGM approving the appointment of Mr. Ramesh 
Kumar Maheshwari (DIN: 00545364), as Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. 16 th July, 2019 for a term of five years, not 

liable to retire by rotation.  

 

 
. 
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Retire by Rotation 
 

In accordance with the provision of Section 152 of the Act read with Article 87(1) of the Articles of Association of the Company, 

Mr. Varun Agrawal (DIN: 00441271), Managing Director will retire by rotation at the ensuing 19 th AGM and being eligible, 
offer himself for re-appointment.  

 
Key Managerial Personnel 
 
There has been no change in the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company during the period under review. 

 
Independent Directors 
 
The Company’s Independent Directors have submitted requisite declarations confirming that they continue to meet the criteria  

of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations. The 
Independent Directors have also confirmed that they have complied with Schedule IV of the Act and the Company’s Code of 

Conduct.  

 
All the Independent Directors of the Company have registered themselves with the Independent Directors’ Data Bank 

maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs. In terms of Section 150 of the Act read with Rule 6(4) of the Companies 
(Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the Independent Directors are required to undertake online proficiency 

self-assessment test conducted by the IICA within a period of one year from the date of inclusion of their names in the data 
bank unless they fall within the exempted category. The Independent Directors who are not falling within exempted category 

will undertake the online self-assessment proficiency test in due course. In the opinion of the Board, all the Independent 
Directors appointed during the year possess requisite integrity, expertise and experience. 

 
SECRETARIAL STANDARDS  
 
The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) has issued Secretarial Standard-1 (SS-1) on ‘Meeting of the Board of 

Directors’ and Secretarial Standard–2 (SS-2) on ‘General Meeting’ and both the Secretarial Standards have been approved by 
the Central Government under section 118(10) of the Act. Pursuant to the provisions of section 118(10) of the Act, it is 

mandatory for the company to observe the secretarial standards with respect to the Board Meeting and General Meeting. The 

Company has adopted and followed the set of principles prescribed in the respective Secretarial Standards for convening and 
conducting Meetings of Board of Directors, General Meeting and matters related thereto. The Directors have devised proper 

systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable Secretarial Standards and that such systems are adequate 
and operating effectively. 

 
STATUTORY AUDITOR AND AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

Agrawal Tondon & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 329088E) had been appointed as Statutory Auditors of 
the Company at the 18th AGM of the Company held on 25th September, 2019, for a period of five consecutive years to hold 

office from the conclusion of the 18th AGM till the conclusion of the 23rd AGM of the Company on such remuneration as may 
be determined by the Board of Directors based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee and mutually agreed by the 

Statutory Auditors, in addition to the reimbursement of out of pocket expenses as may be incurred by them for the purpose of 
audit. 
 

There is no observation (including any qualification, reservation, adverse remarks or disclaimer) of the Auditors in their Audit 

Report that may call for any explanation from the Directors. The specific notes forming part of the accounts referred to in  
Auditor’s Report are self-explanatory and give complete information.  

 
SECRETARIAL AUDITORS  
 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014, read with Regulation 24A of the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors of the Company had 

appointed Vinod Kothari & Company, Practicing Company Secretaries as Secretarial Auditor to conduct Secretarial Audit of 

the Company for the Financial Year 2019-20.  
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
 

The Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3 as given by the Secretarial Auditor for the financial year ended 31 st March, 2020, 

forms a part of the Directors’ Report and annexed as Annexure-‘’C’’.  
 

As mentioned in the Secretarial Audit Report the Company had duly complied with the provisions of the Listing Regulations 

by submitting the financial results for the quarter ended March, 2019 with the National Stock Exchange of India Limited within 

the stipulated time. The Company had also uploaded the full results in BSE website (standalone and consolidated) in XBRL 

format on the same day immediately after the Board meeting. However, due to repeated technical glitches faced by the 

Company, it had made one day delay in submitting the results in ‘quick results’ format with the BSE Limited. Accordingly, as 

per the SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2018/77 dated May 03, 2018, the BSE Limited has vide its letter dated 

June 17, 2019 imposed a fine of Rs. 5,000/- plus applicable taxes on the Company, which the Company had paid.  

As detailed in the previous year’s Directors Report, BSE Limited and NSE Limited had imposed fine upon the Company for 

non compliance with Regulation 17(1) of the Listing Regulations. The Company had paid fine, rectified the unintentional 

default and filed application before relevant committees of the respective exchanges for waiver of fine. The NSE Limited, based 
on the Company’s application has waived the fine and refunded the fine amount. The waiver application before BSE Limited is 

pending as on date. 
 

The Secretarial Audit Report confirms that the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, and 
Guidelines and that there were no deviations or non-compliances. There are no observations (including any qualifications, 

reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimer) of the Secretarial Auditors in their Audit Report that may call for any explanations 

from the Director’s of the Company. 
 

SEBI vide its circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD/27/2019 dated 8 th February, 2019 has specified that the listed entities shall 
additionally, on an annual basis, require a check by a Company Secretary in Practice for compliance of all applicable SEBI 

Regulations and circulars / guidelines issued there under and accordingly the Company has appointed M/s. Bajaj Todi & 
Associates (formerly PS & Associates), Practicing Company Secretaries to carry out necessary audit. A certificate received from 

M/s. Bajaj Todi & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries was placed before the Board and had been filed with the Stock 

Exchange where the Securities of the Company are listed. 
 

COST AUDITORS 
 
Pursuant to the requirement of Section 148 of the Act, cost audit is applicable on your Company for manufacturing items 

covered under Rule 3 of the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014. The Board of Directors of your Company on the 

recommendation of the Audit Committee has appointed M/s S. Chhaparia & Associates, Cost Accountants as Cost Auditors of 
the Company for the Financial Year 2019-20. As required under the Act, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors was 

ratified by the shareholders in the AGM held on 25th September, 2019. 

The Board, pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Act, read with  Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 has 
appointed M/s B. Mukhopadhyay & Co, Cost Accountants, B-20, Amarabati, Sodepur, Kolkata- 700110, as the Cost Auditors of 

the Company for the Financial Year 2020-21 and accordingly, a resolution for seeking Members ratification for the 

remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors, would be placed before the forthcoming 19 th AGM of the Company. The Cost 
Auditors are expected to file the cost audit report with Central Government within the specified period. 

FRAUD REPORTING  
 

There was no fraud reported by the Auditors of the Company under Section 143(12) of the Act, to the Audit Committee or the 

Board of Directors during the financial year under review. 

 
DISCLOSURE ON EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION/ PURCHASE SCHEME 
 

During the year under review, your Company has not provided any employee stock option / purchase scheme.  
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PARTICUALRS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE ACT 
 
The full particulars of the loans given, investments made, guarantees given or security provided and the purpose for which the 

loan or guarantee or security is proposed to be utilised as per the provisions of Section 186 of the Act are provided in the notes 

to the Financial Statements (Refer note no. 4,5,9,13 & 35).  
 

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACT OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 
 
In compliance with the provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations, each Related Party Transaction (RPT) is placed before 

the Audit Committee for prior approval. A prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained on a yearly basis for 

the transactions which are foreseen and repetitive in nature. The transactions pursuant to the omnibus approval so granted, is 

subject to audit and a detailed quarterly sta tement of all Related Party Transactions duly certified by the Chief Financial Officer 

of the Company is placed before the Audit Committee for its review. The policy on RPTs, as approved by the Board, is 

available on the Company’s website at www.manaksiasteels.com and the weblink thereto 

http://www.manaksiasteels.com/upload/media/corporate-policies/Policy-on-Related-Party-Transactions.pdf 

During the year under review, all RPTs were on Arm’s Length Price basis and in the Ordinary Course of Business. The 

particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Act, in the prescribed Form 
AOC-2, forms part of this Annual Report.  Approval of shareholders at the ensuing AGM is being sought for material RPT(s) 

proposed to be entered into by the Company during the Financial Year 2020-21. The details of the proposed material RPT 
pursuant to Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 will be provided in the Notice of AGM.  

There are no materially significant transactions entered into by your Company with Promoters, Directors or Key Managerial 
Personnel (KMPs), which have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. 

 
PARTICULARS OF LOANS/ADVANCES/INVESTMENTS OUTSTANDING DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR AS 
REQUIRED UNDER SCHEDULE V OF THE LISTING REGULATIONS 
 

The details of related party disclosures with respect to loans/ advances/ investments at the year end and maximum 

outstanding amount thereof during the year as required under Para A of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations have been 
provided in the notes to the Financial Statements of the Company.  

 
DETAILS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
AND OUTGO 
 

The details required pursuant to the provisions of section 134(3)(m) of the Act, read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies  
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, relating to Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

forms part of this Directors Report and marked as Annexure-‘’D’’. 

 
RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 

 
Risk Management is the process of identification, assessment and prioritization of risks followed by coordinated efforts to 

minimize, monitor and mitigate the probability and/or impact of unfortunate events or to maximize the realization of 
opportunities. 
 

The Company has structured Risk Management system, designed to safeguard the organization from various risks through 

adequate and timely actions. The Company manages, monitors and reports on its risks and uncertainties that can impact its 

ability to achieve its objectives. The major risks have been identified by the Company and its mitigation process/measures 
have been formulated. 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

The Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the Act, read with Regulation 18 of the Listing Regula tions, has in 

place Audit Committee. The Committee focuses on certain specific areas and makes informed decisions in line with the 

delegated authority and function according to the roles and defined scope.  
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The details of composition, terms of reference and number of meetings held for the Committee is provided in the Corporate 

Governance Report. 
 

There was no such instance wherein the Board had not accepted recommendation of the Audit Committee. 
 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
 

The Company pursuant to the requirement of provisions of Section 178(1) of the Act, read with the Regulation 19 of the Listing 
Regulations has in place the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The details of composition, terms of reference and 

number of meetings held for the Committee is provided in the Corporate Governance Report. 
 

The Company, pursuant to provisions of section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 read with Para A of Part D of Schedule II of 
the Listing Regulations, upon recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee has devised a Remuneration 

Policy applicable to all Executives of the Company i.e. Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management. The said 

policy forms part of this Director’s Report and marked as Annexure- ‘’E’’. 
 

There was no such instance wherein the Board had not accepted recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee. 

 
STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 
 

As required by the provisions of section 178(5) of the Act, read with Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations, the Company has 

in place the Stakeholders Relationship Committee. The details of composition, terms of reference and number of meetings held 
for the Committee is provided in the Corporate Governance Report. 

 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE 
 

The Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (hereinafter referred to as “CSR” Committee) in  

accordance with section 135 of the Act and Rules made thereunder. The composition and the detailed terms of reference of the 
CSR Committee are provided in the Corporate Governance Report. The CSR activities are inter-alia, focused on Improving 

Literacy among Rural Tribal People and Promoting Education. 
 

The report on CSR activities pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act, 2013, and Rule 9 of the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 forms part of this report and marked as Annexure-‘ ’F’’. 

 

The Company has formulated CSR Policy indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company. The Policy has also been 

uploaded on the Company’s website and the weblink thereto is: http://www.manaksiasteels.com/upload/media/corporate-
policies/Corporate-Social-Responsibility-Policy.pdf 
 
There were no such instances wherein the Board had not accepted recommendations of the CSR Committee. 

 

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARRASMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITON AND 
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 
 
The Company has constituted Internal Complaint Committee in compliance with the provisions of Sexual Harrasment of 
Women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

 

As per the Policy, any employee may report his/ her complaint to the Internal Complaint Committee formed for this purpose. 
The Company affirms that during the year under review, adequate access was provided to any complainant who wished to 

register a complaint under the Policy. During the year, the Company has not received any complaint on sexual harassment. 
 

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF BOARD PERFORMANCE AND PERFORMANCE OF ITS COMMITTEES AND 
INDIVIDUAL DIRCETORS 
 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, Regulation 25 of the Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out an Annual Evaluation 

of its own performance, performance of the Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its Committees. 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, and Regulation 25 of the Listing Regulations read with the Guidance Note on Board  
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Evaluation of SEBI dated 5th January, 2017 the NRC Committee has laid down the criteria for performance evaluation, in a 

structured questionnaire form after taking into consideration various aspects of the Boards functioning, composition of the 

Board and its Committees, culture, execution, diligence, integrity, awareness and performance of specific laws, duties, 

obligations and governance, on the basis of which, the Board has carried out the Annual Evaluation of its own performance, 

the performance of Board Committee and of Directors individually, by way of individual and collective feedback from 

Directors.  Further, pursuant to para VII of Schedule IV of the Act, and provisions of the Listing Regulations, the Independent 

Directors of the Company, without participation of Non-Independent Directors and Members of Management, convened a 

separate meeting on 30th May 2019, to inter-alia perform the following: 

 Review the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole; 

 Assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company Management and the Board 
that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.  

The criteria for evaluation are briefly provided below: 
The review of performance of Non-Independent Directors was done, after discussing with them on various parameters, such 

as, skill, competence, experience, degree of engagement, ideas & planning, etc. The Board performance was reviewed on 

various parameters, such as, adequacy of the composition of the Board, Board culture, appropriateness of qualification & 
expertise of Board Members, process of identification and appointment of Independent Directors, inter-personal skills, ability 

to act proactively, managing conflicts, managing crisis situations, diversity in knowledge and related industry expertise, roles  
and responsibilities of Board members, appropriate utilization of talents and skills of Board Members, etc. The evaluation of 

Independent Directors has been done by the entire Board of Directors which includes performance of the Directors and 
fulfillment of the independence criteria and their independence from the Management as specified in the Listing Regulations.  

 

The Board of Directors of the Company expressed their satisfaction towards the process of review and evaluation of Board, its 
Committees and of Individual Directors. 

 
FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 
In terms of Regulation 25(7) of Listing Regulations, your Company is required to conduct Familiarization Programme for 

Independent Directors (IDs) to familiarize them about your Company including nature of industry in which the Company 

operates, business model of the Company, roles, rights and responsibilities of IDs and any other relevant information. Further, 
pursuant to Regulation 46 of Listing Regulations, the Company is required to disseminate on its website, details of 

Familiarization Programme imparted to IDs including the details of:  
i) number of programmes attended by IDs (during the year and on a cumulative basis till date),  

ii) number of hours spent by IDs in such programmes (during the year and on a cumulative basis till date), and; 
iii) other relevant details.  

 

Familiarization Programme undertaken for Independent Directors is provided at the following weblink: 
http://www.manaksiasteels.com/upload/media/management-team/Familarisation_Programme_MSL_19_20.pdf 

 
SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES   
 

Pursuant to the provisions of section 129(3) of the Act, read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the details 
containing salient features of the Financial Statement of subsidiary companies/ associate companies/ joint ventures in Form 

AOC-1 forms a part of this Annual Report. 
 

The details of performance of the Subsidiary Companies are as follows: 

 
Foreign Subsidiaries: 
 
Technomet International FZE 
 
This Company is a subsidiary of Manaksia Steels Limited. The Revenue of the Company during the year ended 31st March, 

2020 stood at AED 26.05 Lacs (equivalent to Rs. 502.96 Lacs). During the said period the company had a net loss of AED 12.33 
Lacs (equivalent to Rs. 237.91 Lacs). 
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Federated Steel Mills Ltd 
 

This Company is a subsidiary of Technomet International FZE. The Revenue of the Company during the year ended 31st 
March, 2020 stood at Naira 20154.00 Lacs (equivalent to Rs. 4628.22 Lacs). During the said period the Company had a net loss 

of Naira (9.48) Lacs (equivalent to a net loss Rs.  (2.18) Lacs.  
 
Far East Steel Industries Ltd 

This Company is a subsidiary of Technomet International FZE. There was no Revenue of the Company during the year ended 

31st March, 2020.   

Except as stated hereinabove, the Company does not have any joint venture or associate company during the year under 

review. 

Sumo Agrochem Ltd 

This Company is a subsidiary of Technomet International FZE. The Revenue of the Company during the year ended 31st 

March, 2020 stood at Naira 499.22 Lacs (equivalent to Rs. 114.64 Lacs). During the said period the Company had a net loss of 
Naira (139.49) Lacs (equivalent to a net loss of Rs. (32.03) Lacs. 
 

MATERIAL SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES  
 

In accordance with Regulation 16(1)(c) of the Listing Regulations, material subsidiary shall mean a subsidiary, whose income 

or net worth exceeds ten percent of the consolidated income or net worth respectively, of the listed entity and its subsidiaries in 
the immediately preceding accounting year. The Company does not have any material subsidiary.  The Company has 

formulated a Policy for determining Material Subsidiaries in accordance with Listing Regulations, and the said Policy for 

determining Material Subsidiaries is available at the following weblink: 

http://www.manaksiasteels.com/upload/media/corporate-policies/Policy-for-determining-Material-Subsidiaries.pdf 
 

DEPOSITS 
 

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the Financial Year under review in terms of the 

provisions of Chapter V of the Act. 
 

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURTS AND TRIBUNALS  
 
The Company has not received any significant or material orders passed by any regulatory authority, court or tribunal which 

may impact its going concern status and its operations in future. 
 

STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. The Directors have laid 
down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and 

were operating effectively. To commensurate the internal financial control with its size, scale and complexities of its  operations, 
the Board based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee in its meeting held on 30 th May, 2019 has re-appointed M/s 

NKA & Associates (formerly M/s. Namita Kedia & Associates), Chartered Accountants, (Firm Regn. No. 328509E) as Internal  
Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2019-20. 

 

The Audit Committee reviews the Report submitted by the Internal Auditors. The Audit Committee actively reviews the 
adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control systems. In this regard, the Board confirms the following: 

 
a) Systems have been laid down to ensure that all transactions are executed in accordance with management’s general 

and specific authorization. There are well-laid manuals for such general or specific authorization. 

 

 



 

 

  
ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20 10 

 
b) Systems and procedures exist to ensure that all transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 

financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles or any other criteria applicable to 

such statements, and to maintain accountability for aspects and timely preparation of reliable financial information. 
c) Access to assets is permitted only in accordance with the management’s general and specific authorization. No assets 

of the Company are allowed to be used for personal purposes, except in accordance with the terms of employment or 

except as specifically permitted. 
d) The existing assets of the Company are verified/ checked at reasonable intervals and appropriate action is taken with 

respect to any differences, if any. 
e) Proper systems are in place for prevention and detection of frauds and errors and for ensuring adherence to the 

Company’s policies. 
 

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/ VIGIL MECHANISM 
 

In compliance with the provisions of Section 177(9) of the Act, and the Listing Regulations, the Company has framed a Whistle 

Blower Policy to establish a vigil mechanism for Directors and employees to report genuine concerns about actual or suspected 

unethical behavior, malpractice, wrongful conduct, discrimination, sexual harassment, fraud, violation of the Company’s 
policies including Code of Conduct without fear of reprisal/retaliation. The Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism has also 

been uploaded on Company’s website and the weblink thereto is:  

http://www.manaksiasteels.com/upload/media/corporate-policies/Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf 
 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES 
 

The disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under the provisions of section 197(12) of the Act, read 
with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 forms a part of this 

Directors’ Report and marked as Annexure-‘’G’’. 
 

During the year under review, no employee of the Company drew remuneration in excess of the limits specified under the 

provisions of section 197(12) of the Act, read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and hence no disclosure is required to be made in the Annual Report. 

 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

In compliance with the provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations, the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company 
and its subsidiaries are attached. The Consolidated Financial Statement has been prepared in accordance with the applicable 

Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and sets out the financial resources, assets, 
liabilities, income, profits and other details of the Company and its subsidiaries. 
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 

Your Company continues its relentless focus on strengthening competition in all its businesses. It is the endeavor of your 

Company to deploy resources in a balanced manner so as to secure the interest of shareholders in the best possible manner in 

short, medium and long terms. 
 

Your Directors convey their grateful appreciation for the valuable patronage and co-operation received and goodwill enjoyed 

by the Company from its esteemed customers, commercial associates, banks, financial institutions, Centra l and State 
Government, various Government and Local Authorities, other stakeholders and the media. 
 

Your Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation to all the employees at all levels for their 
commendable team-work, professionalism and enthusiastic contribution towards the working of the Company. 
 

Your Directors look forward to the future with hope and conviction. 
                  

                 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
 

 
 

Place: Kolkata  
Date : 15th July, 2020 

 
 
 

              Varun Agrawal 
                    Managing Director  

                DIN: 00441271 

 
 
 

                 Mrinal Kanti Pal 
                  Director  

                  DIN: 00867865  
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  ANNEXURE - A 
FORM NO. MGT 9  

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
As on the financial year ended 31.03.2020 

 
Pursuant to section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the  

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 
 

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS: 

 

 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY  
(All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated): 

 
 

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:  
 

Sl. 
No. 

Name and Address of 
the Company 

CIN/GIN Holding/ Subsidiary/ 
Associate  

% of Shares held Applicable Section 

1 Technomet International 

FZE 

(P.O. Box 263598, 
LB20112, Jebel Ali 

Freezone, Dubai, UAE) 

NA Subsidiary Company 100% Section 2(87) 

2 Federated Steel Mills Ltd 

(Subsidiary of 
Technomet International 

FZE) 
(Block XI, Plot 3-10, Ota  

Industrial Estate, Ota, 
Ogun State, Nigeria) 

 

NA Subsidiary Company 100% Section 2(87) 

 
 

1. CIN L27101WB2001PLC138341 

2. Registration Date 7th June, 2001 

3. Name of the Company  MANAKSIA STEELS LIMITED 

4. Category/Sub-category of the Company Public Company Limited by Shares/ Indian Non-Government 

Company 

5. Address of the Registered office  & contact 

details 
 

Turner Morrison Building, 

6, Lyons Range, 1st Floor, 
Kolkata – 700 001 

Tel: +91-33-2231 0055 
Fax: 033 2230 0336  

6. Whether listed company Yes 

7. Name, Address & Contact details of the 

Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any 

Link Intime India Private Limited 

59C, Chowringhee Road, 3rd Floor, 
Room No.5, Kolkata – 700 020 

Tel: +91-033-4004 9728 
Fax: +91-033-4073 1698 

Sl. 
No. 

Name and Description of main products /  
services 

NIC Code of the 
Product/Service  

 

%  to Total Turnover of the Company 

1. HOT/COLD ROLLED PRODUCTS OF STEEL 24105 47.69% 
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Sl. 
No. 

Name and Address of the 
Company 

CIN/GIN Holding/ 
Subsidiary/ 
Associate  

% of Shares held Applicable Section 

3 Far East Steel Industries Ltd 

(Subsidiary of Technomet 
International FZE) 

(Block XI, Plot 1-2, Ota  
Industrial Estate, Ota, Ogun 

State, Nigeria) 

NA  Subsidiary 

Company 

100% Section 2(87) 

4 Sumo Agrochem Ltd 

(Subsidiary of Technomet 
International FZE) 

(Block XI, Plot 1-2, Ota  
Industrial Estate, Ota, Ogun 

State, Nigeria) 

NA  Subsidiary 

Company 

100% Section 2(87) 

 

IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)  
 

(A) Category-wise Share Holding 
 

Category of 
Shareholders 

 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the 
year [As on 01.04.2019] 

No. of Shares held at the end of the year 
[As on 31.03.2020] 

% 
Change 
during 

the year      
Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 
Shares 

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares 

A. Promoters  

(1) Indian  

a) 

Individual/ 
HUF 

45768888 - 45768888 69.840 48985319 - 48985319 74.748 4.908 

b) Central 
Govt 

- - - - - - - - - 

c) State 

Govt(s) 

- - - - - - - - - 

d) Bodies 

Corp. 

- - - - - - - - - 

e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - - 

f) Any other - - - - - - - - - 

Sub-total 
A(1) 

45768888 0 45768888 69.840 48985319 0 48985319 74.748 4.908 

(2) Foreign          

a) NRIs – 
Individuals 

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 

b) Others – 
Individuals 

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 

c) Bodies 

Corp. 

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 

d) Banks / FI _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 

e) Any other _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 

Sub-total A(2) _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 

Total 
shareholding 
of Promoter 
(A) =(A)(1) + 
(A)(2) 

45768888 0 45768888 69.840 48985319 0 48985319 74.748 4.908 
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Category of 
Shareholders 

 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of 
the year [As on 01.04.2019] 

No. of Shares held at the end of the year 
[As on 31.03.2020] 

% 
Change 
during 

the year      
Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 
Shares 

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares 

B. Public 
Shareholding  

1. Institutions   

a) Mutual 

Funds 

- - - - - - - - - 

b) Banks / FI 1257 - 1257 0.002 1363 - 1363 0.002 - 

c) Central Govt - - - - - - - - - 

d) State 
Govt(s) 

- - - - - - - - - 

e) Foreign 

Portfolio 

Investor 

4052146 - 4052146 6.183 837146 - 837146 1.277 (4.906) 

f) Venture 
Capital Funds 

- - - - - - - - - 

g) Insurance 
Companies 

- - - - - - - - - 

h) FIIs  - - - - - - - - - 

i) Foreign 
Venture 

Capital Funds 

- - - - - - - - - 

i) Others 

(specify) 

- - - - - - - - - 

Sub-total 
(B)(1) 

4053403 - 4053403 6.185 838509 - 838509 1.280 (4.905) 

2. Non-
Institutions  

        

a) Bodies Corp.          

i) Indian 3491380 1 3491381 5.3276 3699130 - 3699130 5.645 0.317 

ii) Overseas  - - - - - - - - - 

b) Individuals 

i) Individual 

shareholders 

holding 

nominal share 

capital up to 

Rs. 1 lac 

7274170 995 7275165 11.101 

 

7336438 956 7337394 11.196 0.095 

ii) Individual 

shareholders 

holding 

nominal share 

capital in 

excess of Rs. 1 

lac 

3979271 - 3979271 6.072 3601500 - 3601500 5.496 (0.577) 

c) Others 
(specify) 
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Category of 
Shareholders 

 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the 
year [As on 01.04.2019] 

No. of Shares held at the end of the year 
[As on 31.03.2020] 

% 
Chang

e 

during 
the 
year      

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares 

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares 

Non Resident 

Indians(Rep) 

117805 - 117805 0.180 108802 - 108802 0.166 (0.014) 

NBFC’s 
registered with 

RBI 

50 - 50 0.000 - - - - (0.000) 

Non Resident 

Indians(Non-
Rep) 

79349 - 79349 0.121 270171 - 270171 0.412 0.291 

Clearing 
Members 

156214 - 156214 0.238 20029 - 20029 0.031 (0.208) 

Hindu 
Undivided 

Family 

612524 - 612524 0.935 673196 - 673196 1.027 0.093 

Sub-total (B)(2) 15710763 996 15711759 23.975 15709266 956 15710222 23.973 (0.002) 

Total Public 
Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+ 
(B)(2) 

19764166 996 19765162 30.160 16547775 956 16548731 25.252 (4.908) 

C. Shares held 
by Custodian 
for GDRs & 
ADRs 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

Grand Total 

(A+B+C) 

65533054 996 65534050 100 65533094 956 65534050 100 0.00 

 
(B) Shareholding of Promoters: 

 
 
 

Sl. 
No

. 
 

Shareholder’s 
Name 

 

Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year 

(as on 01.04.2019) 

Shareholding at the end of the year 
(as on 31.3.2020) 

 
% change in 
shareholding 

during the 
year 

No. of 
Shares 

% of 
total 

Shares of 
the 

company 

% of Shares 
Pledged/ 

encumbered 
to total 

shares 

No. of 
Shares 

% of 
total 

Shares of 
the 

company 

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total 

shares 

1. Mr. Varun Agrawal 
 

12494810 19.066 - 12761241 19.473 - 0.407 

2. Mr. Suresh Kumar 

Agrawal 

 

12350360 18.846 - 12350360 18.846 - 0.000 

3. Mrs. Chandrakala 
Agrawal 

 

10750000 16.404 - 10750000 16.404 - 0.000 

4. Mrs. Payal Agrawal  

 

9836218 15.009 - 12786218 19.511 - 4.502 

5. Suresh Kumar 
Agrawal (HUF) 

 

337500 0.515 - 337500 0.515 - 0.000 
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(C)  Change in Promoters’ Shareholding:  

Sl. 
No. 

Name Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

(as on 01.04.2019) 

Date Increase/ 
(Decrease) in 
Shareholding 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

(01.04.2019 to 31.03.2020) 

No. of Shares  % of Total 
Shares of 

the 

Company 

No. of 
Shares 

% of Total 
Shares of the 

Company 

1 Mr. Varun 

Agrawal 
 

12494810 19.066 01.04.2019 

19.12.2019 
 31.03.2020 

 

266431  
- 

12494810 

12761241 
12761241 

19.0661 

19.4727 
19.4727 

2 Mr. Suresh Kumar 
Agrawal 

12350360 18.8457 01.04.2019 
31.03.2020 

 
No Change  

 
12350360 

 
18.8457 

3 Mrs. Chandrakala 

Agrawal 

10750000 16.4037 01.04.2019 

31.03.2020 

 

No Change  

 

10750000 

 

16.4037 

4 Mrs. Payal 

Agrawal 

9836218 15.009 01.04.2019 

19.12.2019 
31.03.2020 

 

2950000 

9836218 

12786218 
12786218 

15.009 

19.5108 
19.5108 

5 Suresh Kumar 
Agrawal (HUF) 

337500 0.515 01.04.2019 
31.03.2020 

No Change 337500 0.515 

 

Note: The change in shareholding is due to creeping acquisition of shares through market purchase. There is no change in 

shareholding of any other promoters except as disclosed above. 

(D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders: 

(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs) 

Sl. No. Name Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

         (as on 01.04.2019) 

Date Increase/ 
(Decrease) in 
Shareholding 

Cumulative 
Shareholding during 
the year (01.04.2019 to 
31.03.2020) 

No. of 
Shares  

% of total 
shares of the 

Company 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
shares of 

the 
Company 

 

1 CRESTA FUND 

LTD. 

837146 1.2774 01.04.2019 

31.03.2020 

 

- 

837146 

837146 

1.2774 

1.2774 

2 PRITI A DOSHI 
 

747000 1.1399 01.04.2019 
31.03.2020 

 
- 

747000 
 

1.1399 
 

3 LINTON 
CONSULTANTS 

PVT. LTD. 

101797 0.1553 01.04.2019 
20.03.2020 

31.03.2020 

 
400000 

 

101797 
501797 

501797 

0.1553 
0.7657 

0.7657 

4 GLOBE CAPITAL 
MARKET LTD. 

495524 
 

0.7561 01.04.2019 
13.12.2019 

27.12.2019 

31.12.2019 
03.01.2020 

10.01.2020 
31.03.2020 

- 
(150) 

50 

(50) 
6500 

(6500) 
- 

495524 
495374 

495424 

495374 
501874 

495374 
495374 

0.7561 
0.7559 

0.7560 

0.7559 
0.7658 

0.7559 
0.7559 

5 SAMEER KISHORE 
DOSHI 

 
 

420000 0.6409 01.04.2019 
31.03.2020 

- 
- 

420000 
420000 

 

0.6409 
0.6409 
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Sl. No. Name Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year 
(as on 01.04.2019) 

Date Increase/ 
(Decrease) in 
Shareholding 

Cumulative 
Shareholding during 
the year (01.04.2019 to 
31.03.2020) 

No. of 
Shares  

% of total 
shares of the 

Company 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
shares of 

the 
Company 

 
6 MRS. SUDHA 

GUPTA 

375000 0.5722 01.04.2019 

31.03.2020 

- 

- 
 

375000 

375000 

0.5722 

0.5722 

7 MANSI SAMEER 
DOSHI 

335000 0.5112 01.04.2019 
31.03.2020 

- 

- 

335000 
335000 

0.5112 
0.5112 

8 SKYBRIDGE REAL 

ESTATES LLP 
 

330000 0.5036 01.04.2019 

31.03.2020 

- 

- 
 

330000 

330000 

0.5036 

0.5036 

9 KAUSHALYA 

CHANDAK 

298000 0.4547 01.04.2019 

31.03.2020 

- 

- 

298000 

298000 

0.4547 

0.4547 

10 SUNIL 

ENTERPRISES 
(INDIA) LLP 

266293 0.4063 01.04.2019 

31.03.2020 

- 

- 
 

266293 

266293 

0.4063 

0.4063 

11 ADITYA KUMAR 

HALWASIYA 

430271 0.6566 01.04.2019 

05.04.2019 
12.04.2019 

26.04.2019 
31.05.2019 

07.06.2019 
21.06.2019 

19.07.2019 

02.08.2019 
27.12.2019 

31.12.2019 
06.03.2020 

31.03.2020 
 

- 

68856 
873 

1587 
58225 

13190 
5057 

10000 

5667 
(326000) 

(253129) 
7551 

- 

430271 

499127 
500000 

501587 
559812 

573002 
578059 

588059 

593726 
267726 

14597 
22148 

22148 
 

0.6566 

0.7616 
0.7630 

0.7654 
0.8542 

0.8744 
0.8821 

0.8973 

0.9060 
0.4085 

0.0223 
0.0338 

0.0338 

12 ALBULA 
INVESTMENT 

FUND LTD 

3215000 4.9058 01.04.2019 
20.12.2019 

31.03.2020 

- 
(3215000) 

- 

3215000 
- 

- 

4.9058 
- 

- 

13 MULTIPLUS 

RESOURCES 
LIMITED 

399953 0.6103 01.04.2019 

26.04.2019 
20.03.2020 

31.03.2020 

- 

47 
(400000) 

- 

399953 

400000 
- 

- 

0.6103 

0.6104 
- 

- 

 
Note: The above information is based on the weekly beneficiary position received from the Depositories.  
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(E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:    
 

Sl. No. Name Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year 

(as on 01.04.2019) 

Date Increase/ 

(Decrease) in 

Shareholding 

Cumulative 

Shareholding during 

the year (01.04.2019 

to 31.03.2020) 

No. of 

Shares  

% of total 

shares of the 

Company 

No. of 

Shares 

% of total 

shares of 

the 

Company 

DIRECTORS 
 

1 Mr. Ajay Kumar Chakraborty - - 01.04.2019 
31.03.2020 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

2 Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri - - 01.04.2019 
31.03.2020 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

3 Mr. Ramesh Kumar Maheshwari - - 01.04.2019 
31.03.2020 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

3 Mr. Mrinal Kanti Pal 396 0.001 01.04.2019 
31.03.2020 

 
- 

396 0.001 

4 Mrs. Smita Khaitan - - 01.04.2019 
31.03.2020 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

5 Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal 12350360 18.846 01.04.2019 
31.03.2020 

 
- 

12350360 18.846 

6 Mr. Varun Agrawal  
 
 

12494810 19.066 01.04.2019 
27.12.2019 
31.03.2020 

 
266431  

- 

12494810 
12761241 
12761241 

19.0661 
19.4727 
19.4727 

 
KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

 

1 Ajay Sharma 

 - Company Secretary 

20 - 01.04.2019 
31.03.2020 

- 20 
 

- 

2 Rajesh Singhania 

- Chief Financial Officer 

2 - 01.04.2019 
31.03.2020 

- 
 

2 
 

- 

3 Mr. Vineet Agrawal 

- Chief Executive Officer  

- - 01.04.2019 

31.03.2020 

- - - 
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(F) INDEBTEDNESS  
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/ accrued but not due for payment. 
               

(Rs. In Lacs) 

Particulars 
Secured Loans 

excluding 

Deposits 

Unsecured 
Loans 

Deposits Total Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year    
  

i) Principal Amount - - - - 

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - - 

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - - 

Total (i+ii+iii) - - - - 

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year 

 - -  

* Addition 3690.13 - - 3690.13 

* Reduction - - - - 

Net Change 3690.13 - - 3690.13 

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year  

 - - - 

i) Principal Amount 3690.13 - - 3690.13 

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - - 

iii) Interest accrued but not due 2.80 - - 2.80 

Total (i+ii+iii) 3692.93 - - 3692.93 

 
V. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

 
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Director and/or Manager: 

(Rs. In Lacs) 

SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount 

    Managing Director   

    Mr. Varun Agrawal 
(01.04.2019 to 31.03.2020) 

  

1 Gross salary     

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 240.00 240.00 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 - - 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961 - - 

2 Stock Option - - 

3 Sweat Equity - - 

4 Commission - - 

-  as % of profit - - 

-  others, specify… - - 

5 Others, please specify - - 

  Total (A) 240.00 240.00 

  Ceiling as per the Act* 240.00 240.00 

*The Ceiling as per the Act has been calculated as per Schedule V  for the period of appointment. 
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B. Remuneration to other directors 

                                                  (Rs. In Lacs) 

Sl. 
No. 

  

Particulars of Remuneration 

  

Name of Directors Total Amount 

  
Ajay Kumar 
Chakraborty 

Kali Kumar 
Chaudhuri 

Smita Khaitan 

1 Independent Directors         

Fee for attending board/committee 
meetings 

0.31 0.73 0.73 1.77 

Commission - - - - 
Others, please specify - - - - 
Total (1) 0.31 0.73 0.73 1.77 

2 Other Non-Executive Directors Suresh Kumar 
Agrawal 

Ramesh Kumar 
Maheshwari 

Mrinal Kanti Pal  

Fee for attending board/committee 

meetings 
0.43 0.53 0.30 1.26 

Commission            -            - -  

Others, please specify            -            - -  

  Total (2) 0.43 0.53 0.30 1.26 

  Total (B)=(1+2)  3.03 

  
Total Managerial 
Remuneration* 

 243.03 

 Overall Ceiling as per the Act**  569.00 

* Total Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole Time Director (Mr. Vineet Agrawal continues to be the CEO of the Company) & other Directors 

(being the total of A & B). 
** The overall ceiling has been calculated as per the Act and also as per Schedule V for the period of appointment. 

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD: 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                 (Rs. In Lacs)                           

SN Particulars of 

Remuneration 

Key Managerial Personnel 

    Chief Executive Officer 

 

CS CFO Total 

1 Gross salary Mr. Vineet Agrawal 
(01.04.2019-31.03.2020) 

Mr. Ajay Sharma 
(01.04.2019-31.03.2020) 

Mr. Rajesh Singhania 
(01.04.2019-31.03.2020) 

 

(a) Salary as per  

provisions contained 
in section 17(1) of the 

Income-tax Act, 1961 

228.00 5.07 14.25 247.32 

(b) Value of  
perquisites u/s 17(2) 

of the Income-tax 
Act, 1961 

- -  - 

(c) Profits in lieu of 

salary under section 
17(3) of the Income-

tax Act, 1961 

- -  - 

2 Stock Option - -  - 

3 Sweat Equity  - -  - 

4 Commission - -  - 

  Others, specify… - -  - 

5 Others, please 

specify 
 - -  - 

  Total 228.00 5.07 14.25 247.32 
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VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 

Type Section of the 

Companies Act 

Brief 

Description 

Details of 

Penalty /  

Punishment/ 

Compounding 

fees imposed 

Authority 

[RD / NCLT/ 

COURT] 

Appeal made, 

if any (give 

Details) 

A. COMPANY                                                            

Penalty  -  -  -  -  - 

Punishment  -  -  -  -  - 

Compounding  -  -  -  -  - 

B. DIRECTORS 

Penalty  -  -  -  -  - 

Punishment  -  -    -  - 

Compounding  -  -  -  -  - 

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT 

Penalty  -  -  -  -  - 

Punishment  -  -  -  -  - 

Compounding  -  -  -  -  - 

 
                                    For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  

      

Place: Kolkata                          Varun Agrawal         Mrinal Kanti Pal 

Dated: 15th July, 2020                        Managing Director     Director 
                             DIN: 00441271             DIN: 00867865 
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                         Annexure – B 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT    

Your Company has complied with the provisions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  

 
A report on the implementation of Corporate Governance by the Company as per the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is given below. 
 
Philosophy of the Company on Corporate Governance 
The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is to ensure adoption of high standard of ethics, sound business 

decisions, prudent financial management practices, professionalism in decision making and conducting the business and 

compliance with regulatory guidelines on Governance. The Company has adopted the principles of good Corporate 
Governance and is committed to adopt best relevant practices for Governance to achieve the highest levels of transparency and 

accountability in all its interactions with its stakeholders including shareholders, employees, lenders and the Government. As 
such the Company aims at always remaining progressive, competent and trustworthy, creating and enhancing value of 

stakeholders and customers to their complete satisfaction. The Company continues to focus its resources, strengths and 
strategies to achieve the core values of quality, trust, leadership and excellence. 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
Composition of the Board  
As on 31st March, 2020, the Board comprised of seven directors of whom four are Independent Directors (including One 

Independent Woman Director), one is an Executive Director and two are Non-Executive Directors.  The composition of the 
Board of Directors is in conformity with the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “The Act”) and the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as “Listing Regulations”).  

 
Number of Board Meetings held and attended by Directors 
During the financial year 2019-20, five meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company were held and gap between any two 

consecutive meetings did not exceed 120 days. In case of business exigencies, the Board’s approval is taken through circular 
resolutions. The circular resolutions are noted at the subsequent Board Meeting.  The dates on which the Board meetings were 

held are 30th May, 2019; 16th July, 2019; 13th August, 2019; 11th November, 2019 and 13th February, 2020. The attendance 
record of each of the directors at the Board Meetings held during the year ended 31st March, 2020 and of the last Annual 

General Meeting is as under: 
 

Name of the 

Directors 

Category 

of 
Directors 

Number of 

Board 
meetings 

held 
during FY 

2019-20 

Number of 

Board 
meetings 

attended 
during FY 

2019-20 

Whether 

attended 
AGM held 

on 25th  
September, 

2019 

Number of directorship in 

other public limited 
companies* (including 

this Company) 

Number of committee 

positions held in other public 
limited companies** 

(including this Company) 

Directorship in other listed companies 

 Chairman 
of the 
Board 

Board 
Member 

Chairman of 
the 
Committee 

Committee 
member 

Name of the listed 
entity 

Category of 
directorship 

Mr. Ajay Kumar 

Chakraborty 

DIN: 00133604 

NEI 5 3 
 

No 2 4 2 3 Shreyans Industries 
Limited 

NEI 

Manaksia Coated 
Metals & Industries 

Limited 

NEI/ 
Chairman 

Manaksia Aluminium 
Company Limited 

NEI/ 
Chairman 

Dr. Kali Kumar 

Chaudhuri 
DIN: 00206157 

NEI 5 5 Yes None 4 1 4 Duroply Industries 
Limited 

NEI 

Manaksia Steels 
Limited 

NEI 

Mrs. Smita Khaitan 

DIN: 01116869 

NEI 5 5 Yes None 3 1 5 Manaksia Limited NEI 

Mr. Mrinal Kanti 

Pal 
DIN: 00867865 

NED 5 4 Yes None 1 0 0 - - 

Mr. Suresh Kumar 

Agrawal 
DIN: 00520769 

PD/NEDD 5 5 Yes None 3 0 1 Manaksia Limited PD/MD 

Mr. Varun Agrawal 

DIN: 00441271 

PD/MD 5 5 Yes None 1 0 2 - - 

# Mr. Ramesh 
Kumar Maheshwari 
DIN: 00545364 

NEI 5 4 Yes None  3 - 4 Manaksia Limited NEI 
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PD: Promoter Director; MD: Managing Director; NEI: Non-Executive Independent Director, NED: Non-Executive Director, WTD: 
Whole Time Director. 
*  This excludes Directorship held in Indian Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and Companies registered 

under Section 8 of the Act. 

**  Committee refers to Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee. 

#  Mr. Ramesh Kumar Maheshwari was inducted in the Board w.e.f. 16 th July, 2019. 
 

None of the Directors hold Directorship in more than the permissible number of companies prescribed under the Act or 
Directorships / Membership / Chairmanship of Board Committees as permissible under Regulations 25 and 26 of Listing 

Regulations. 
 

Shares/ Convertible instruments held by the NEDs 
The number of Shares held by Non-Executive Directors as on 31st March, 2020 is as follows: 

 

Name of Non- Executive Directors No of Shares Held 

Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal 1,23,50,360 

Mr. Mrinal Kanti Pal 396 

 

Disclosures of relationships between Directors inter-se:  
Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal and Mr. Varun Agrawal are relatives within the meaning of section 2(77) of the Act. 
 

Independent Directors 
The Company ensured that the persons, who have been appointed as the Independent Directors of the Company, have the 

requisite qualifications and experience which they would continue to contribute and would be beneficial to the Company. In 
terms of requirement of Section 149 (7) of the Act read with Rules made thereunder and Listing Regulations, all Independent 

Directors have given declaration that they meet the criteria of independence as stated in Section 149(6) of the Act and 
Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations. The requisite papers were placed before the Board. In the opinion of your 

Directors, the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified in the Listing Regulations and they are independent of the 

management. None of the Independent Directors of the Company have resigned during the Financial year 2019-20. 
 

Formal letter of Appointment 
A formal letter of appointment of Independent Directors had been issued at the time of appointment/re-appointment. The 
terms and conditions of their appointment are disclosed on the website of the Company at the following weblink:  

http://www.manaksiasteels.com/upload/media/management-team/Terms-and-Conditions-of-appointment-of-Independent-
Directors.pdf 
 
Performance Evaluation  

 Board of Directors   

As per the applicable provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations and based on the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation of 

SEBI dated 5th January, 2017, the Board carries out an annual evaluation of its own performance, as well as the working of its  
Committees. The Board works with the Committees to lay down the criteria for the performance evaluation. The contribution  

and impact of individual Directors is reviewed through a peer evaluation on parameters such as level of engagement and 
participation, flow of information, independence of judgement, conflicts resolution and their contribution in enhancing the 

Board’s overall effectiveness. Feedback-cum-assessment of individual Directors, the Board as a whole and its Committees is 
conducted. The feedback obtained from the interventions is discussed in detail and, where required, independent and 

collective action points for improvement are put in place.   
 

 Independent Directors 

Performance evaluation of Independent Directors was done by the entire Board of Directors excluding the director being 
evaluated. On the basis of that evaluation the performance of the Independent Directors have been found satisfactory and the 

Board of Directors were of the view that the performance of the Independent Directors is beneficial for the Company. The 
parameters used by Board of Directors for the performance evaluation of Independent Directors inter alia include: 

 

i) Roles and responsibilities to be fulfilled as an Independent Director; 

ii) Participation in Board Processes 
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Separate Meeting of the Independent Directors  
During the Financial Year 2019-20, as per the requirement of Schedule IV of the Act and Listing Regulations, one separate 
meeting of Independent Directors was held on 30th May, 2019 without the presence of the Non-Independent Directors and the 

members of the management to discuss inter-alia the following: 
a. Performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole 

b. To assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and 
the Board. 

 
Familiarization Programme for the Independent Directors 
The Company has organised a familiarisation programme for its Independent Directors. The objective of the programme is to 

familiarise the Independent Directors to enable them to understand the operation of the Company, its business, industry and 
environment in which it functions and the regulatory environment applicable to it. These include orientation programme upon 

induction of new Directors as well as other initiatives to update the Directors on a continuing basis. 
 

During the financial year 2019-20, one new Independent Director was appointed on the Board of the Company. Therefore, on 

an ongoing basis as a part of Agenda of Board/ Committee Meetings Independent Directors regularly discuss on various 
matters inter-alia covering the Company’s and the businesses & operations of its subsidiaries, industry and regulatory updates, 

strategy, finance, risk management framework, role, rights, responsibilities of the Independent Directors under various statutes  
and other relevant matters. 

 
The details of Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors is provided at the following weblink:  

http://www.manaksiasteels.com/upload/media/management-team/Familarisation_Programme_MSL_19_20.pdf 

 
Non-Executive Directors 
Non-Executive Directors, including Independent Directors, play a crucial role in imparting balance to the Board processes by 

bringing independent judgement on  issues of strategy, performance, resources, standards of Company’s conduct etc.   
 
Expertise and Competency of the Board of Directors  
The Board comprises of highly qualified members who possess required skills, expertise and competence that allow them to 

make effective contribution to the Board and its Committees.  

 
The Directors possess required skills / expertise / competencies as identified by the Board, for efficient functioning of the 

Company in the context of the Company’s businesses and sectors are tabulated below: 
 

Core 
skills/competencies/ 
expertise 

Mr. 
Varun 
Agrawal 

Mr. 
Suresh 
Kumar 
Agrawal 

Dr. Kali 
Kumar 
Chaudhuri  

Mr. Ajay 
Kumar 
Chakraborty 

Mr. Ramesh 
Kumar 
Maheshwari 

Mr. Mrinal 
Kanti Pal 

Mrs. Smita  
Khaitan 

Understanding of 
Business/Industry 

√ √ √ √ √ √ √ 

Strategy and 
strategic planning 

√ √ √ √ √ √ √ 

Critical and 
innovative thoughts 

√ √ √ √ √ √ √ 

Financial 
understanding 

√ √ √ √ √ √ √ 

Market 
understanding 

√ √ √ √ √ √ √ 

Board Cohesion √ √ √ √ √ √ √ 
Risk and 
compliance 
oversight 

√ √ √ √ √ √ √ 
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Board Agenda  
The meetings of the Board are governed by a structured agenda. The Agenda for the Board Meeting covers items set out as per 
the requirements of the Act and Listing Regulations to the extent these are relevant and applicable. The Managing Director and 

the Chairperson of the Meeting ensures that relevant issues are on the Board agenda and the Board is kept informed on all 
matters of importance. All agenda items are supported by relevant information and documents to enable the Board to take 

informed decisions. Members of the Senior Management are occasionally present in the meeting as special invitees, as and 

when required. The Notice and Agenda of each Board Meeting is given in advance to all Directors in compliance with the 
requirements of the secretarial standards. 

 
Information placed before the Board 
Necessary information as required under statute and as per the guidelines on Corporate Governance are placed before the 
Board, from time to time. The Board periodically reviews compliances of various laws applicable to the Company and the 

items required to be placed before it. Draft minutes are circulated amongst the Directors for their comments within the period 

stipulated under the applicable law. The minutes of the proceedings of the meetings are entered in the Minutes Book and 
thereafter signed by the Chairman of the meeting or by the Chairman of the next meeting. 

 
Code of Conduct 
The Company has adopted a “Code of Conduct” for Board Members and Senior Management of the Company. The Code 
anchors ethical and legal behaviour within the organisation. The Code is available on the Company’s website at the following 

weblink: http://www.manaksiasteels.com/upload/media/corporate-policies/Code-of-Conduct-Board-Members.pdf 
 
All Board members and senior management executives have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct. A declaration 

signed by the Managing Director to this effect is forming part of this Report . 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149(8) of the Act, the Independent Directors shall abide by the provisions specified in 

Schedule IV to the Act, which lay down a code for Independent Directors. The said Schedule forms part of the appointment 
letter of the Independent Directors. 

 
WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy, as part of vigil  mechanism to provide appropriate avenues to the Directors  
and employees to bring to the attention of the management any issue which is perceived to be in violation of or in conflict with 

the fundamental business principles of the Company. The Whistle Blower Policy provides for sufficient guard against any 

possible victimisation of Whistle Blower. No personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee. The Whistle Blower 
Policy of the Company is available on the Company’s website at the following weblink, 

http://www.manaksiasteels.com/upload/media/corporate-policies/Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf 
 
BOARD COMMITTEES 
The Board of Directors of the Company play a crucial role in the governance structure of the Company and have been  

constituted to deal with specific areas/ activities which concern the Company and need a closer review. The Board Committees 
are set up under the formal approval of the Board to carry out clearly defined roles which are considered to be performed by 

members of the Board, as a part of good governance practice. The minutes of the meetings of all committees are placed before 
the Board for review. The Board Committees can request special invitees to join the meeting, as and when appropriate and 

required. The Company has five Board level committees: 

 
a) Audit Committee 

b) Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
c) Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

d) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
e) Committee of Directors 

 

The Board is responsible for constituting, assigning, co-opting and fixing the terms and reference for members of various 
committees. The minutes of all the Board and Committee meetings are placed before the Board and noted by the Directors 

present at the meetings. The role and composition of the Committees including the number of meeting(s) held and the related 
attendance during financial year 2019-20 are as follows: 
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Audit Committee 
The Company has in place a qualified and independent Audit Committee. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee 
includes the powers as laid down in Regulation 18(2) (c) and role as stipulated in Regulation 18(3) of the Listing Regulations 

read with Section 177 of the Act. The Audit Committee also reviews the information as per the requirement of Regulation 18(3) 
of the Listing Regulations read with Section 177 of the Act. 
 

The brief description of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee inter alia includes the following: 
(a) Overview of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of the financial information to ensure that 

the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible. 

(b) Review with the management, quarterly and annual financial statements before submission to the Board. 
(c) Review with the management, performance of the statutory and internal auditors and adequacy of Internal Control  

system. 
(d) Recommending to the Board, re-appointment of Statutory Auditors and the fixation of their Audit Fees. 

(e) Recommending to the Board, terms and conditions for appointment of Cost Auditor. 
(f) Discussion with the internal auditor on any significant findings and follow up thereon. 

(g) Review of related party transactions and transfer pricing. 

(h) Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties. 
(i) Scrutiny of inter-corporate Loans and investments.  

(j) Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in the subsidiary, and 
(k) generally all items listed in Part-C of Schedule-II of the Listing Regulations and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 

2013. 
 

The Committee may in addition to above given functions, carry out any other functions as referred by the Board, from time to 
time, or referred by any statutory notification / amendment or modification, as may be, applicable. 

The Audit Committee is also provided with the following information on the Related Party Transactions (whenever 

applicable): 

(i)  A statement of transactions with related parties in summary form in the ordinary course of business. 
(ii)  Details of material individual transactions with related parties, other than with its wholly owned subsidiaries whose 

accounts are consolidated with the company and placed before the shareholders at the general meeting for approval, 
which are not in the ordinary course of business.  

Composition 
The composition of the Audit Committee is in accordance with the requirement of Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations and 
Section 177 of the Act. All members of the Audit Committee have the ability to read and understand financial statements. 
 

As on 31st March, 2020, the Committee comprised of Three Independent Directors and One Executive Director and the 
members of the Audit Committee elect one Independent Director among themselves as the Chairman of the Committee in each 

meeting. The composition as on 31st March, 2020 consists of Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri (Independent Director), Mr. Ramesh 
Kumar Maheshwaari (Independent Director), Mrs. Smita Khaitan (Independent Woman Director) and Mr. Varun Agrawal 

(Executive Director). Mr. Ramesh Kumar Maheshwari has been inducted in the Committee with  effect from 16th July, 2019. The 

Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary to the Committee. 
 

The Audit Committee meetings are also attended by Chief Financial Officer (CFO), representatives of Statutory Auditors, 

representa tives of Internal Auditors and Senior Executives of the Company, if required. 
 

Meetings and Attendance 
4 (Four) Audit Committee Meetings were held during the Financial Year. The dates on which the Audit Committee meetings  

were held are 30th May, 2019; 13th August, 2019; 11th November, 2019 and 13th February, 2020. The details of the attendance of 
members are as under: 
 

Name of the Members No. of meetings during the financial year 2019-20 

Held Attended 

Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri 4 4 

Mrs. Smita Khaitan 4 4 

Mr. Varun Agrawal  4 4 

Mr. Ramesh Kumar Maheshwari* 4 3 

 
* Mr. Ramesh Kumar Maheshwari has been inducted in the Committee with effect from 16th July, 2019. 
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There is no permanent Chairperson of the Audit Committee; all the members of the Audit Committee were present at the last 
Annual General Meeting held on 25th September, 2019. 

 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
Pursuant to the requirement of provisions of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations, the Company 

has in place the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, inter-alia, includes the following: 

a) To lay down criteria to identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and may be appointed in senior 

management and to recommend to the Board their appointment and /or removal.  

b) To evaluate performance of every Director. 

c) To formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of Directors.  

d) To recommend remuneration policy of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees.   

e) To recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management as defined under the 
Listing Regulations. 

f) To formulate the criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board and to recommend/review 

remuneration payable to Whole time Directors/Managing Director/ relatives of Directors based on their performance 
and defined assessment criteria. 

g) To devise a policy on Board diversity.  

h) To carry out any other functions as is referred by the Board, from time to time, or referred by any statutory 

notification/amendment or modification, as may be applicable, and 

i) generally all items listed in Part-D of Schedule-II of the Listing Regulations and Section 178 of the Act. 

 
Composition 
As on 31st March, 2020 the Committee comprised of four Independent Directors and one Non-Executive Director. The 

Chairperson of the Committee is an Independent Director. Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri (Independent Director), Mrs. Smita  
Khaitan (Independent Woman Director), Mr. Ramesh Kumar Maheshwari (Independent Director), and Mr. Suresh Kumar 

Agrawal (Non-Executive Director) are members of the Committee. The Company Secretary of the Company acts as Secretary to 

the Committee. 
 

The composition of the Committee is in line with the requirement given in Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 of the 
Listing Regulations. 

 
Meeting and Attendance  

2 (Two) Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings were held during the financial year. The dates on which the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings were held are 30th May, 2019 and 16th July, 2019. The details of 

attendance of members are as under: 
 

Name of the Member No. of meetings during the financial year 

2019-20 
 

Held Attended 

Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri  2 2 

Mrs. Smita Khaitan 2 2 

Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal 2 2 

Mr. Ramesh Kumar Maheshwari* 1 1 

 
* Mr. Ramesh Kumar Maheshwari has been inducted in the Committee with effect from 16 th July, 2019. 

 
All the members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee attended the last Annual General Meeting held on 25th 
September, 2019. 

 
The Committee has fixed the criteria viz. knowledge and competency, functions, ability to perform as a team, commitment, 

contribution , integrity etc. for appointment and evaluation of performance of independent directors. All the directors take part 

in the evaluation process yearly and the same is placed and considered by the Committee. 
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Remuneration of Directors 
The Managing Director is paid remuneration as per the agreement with the Company. The agreement is approved by the 
Board and the terms are also approved by the shareholders. The remuneration structure of the Managing Director comprises 

salary, perquisites and other benefits which are within the overall limits prescribed under the Act. The Managing Director and 
the Whole Time Director are not paid sitting fee for attending Meetings of the Board or Committees thereof.  

 
The Directors are not entitled to any other benefits, bonuses, pension etc. and are also not entitled to performance linked 

incentives. The Company does not have any Employee Stock Option Scheme. 

 
The Non-Executive Directors are entitled to sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board and Committees thereof which are 

within the limit prescribed under the Act. The sitting fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors for attending the meetings of the 
Board and Audit Committee is Rs. 7,500/- per meeting and for attending other Committee meetings is Rs. 1,000/- per meeting. 

The remuneration paid to the Managing Director is within the overall limits approved by the Shareholders.  
 

Details of Remuneration paid or payable to Directors for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2020:   

(Rs. In Lacs) 
Name of the Directors Service contract/Notice period Salary* 

 

Sitting Fees** 

Mr. Varun Agrawal  Re-appointed as Managing Director liable to 
retire by rotation, for a period of three years with 

effect from 11th February, 2019. 
 

240.00 - 

Mr. Vineet Agrawal  
 

Appointed as a Whole-time Director and 
designated as Chief Executive Officer (CEO), 

liable to retire by rotation, for a period of three 
years with effect from 21st July, 2016. But ceased 

to be the Whole-time Director of the Company 
with effect from the close of business hours of 

14.02.2019 and continues to be the CEO of the 

Company. 
 

228.00 - 

Mr. Mrinal Kanti Pal 

 

Appointed as Non-Executive Director with effect 

from 23rd November, 2014 
 

NA 0.30 

Mr. Suresh Kumar 
Agrawal  

 

Appointed as Non-Executive Director with effect 
from 11th February, 2016 

 

NA 0.43 

Mr. Ajay Kumar 

Chakraborty 

 

Re-appointed as Independent Director for a  

period of Five years with effect from 26th 
September, 2019 

 

NA 0.31 

Dr. Kali Kumar 

Chaudhuri 

 

Re-appointed as Independent Director for a  

period of Five years with effect from 26th 
September, 2019 

 

NA 0.73 

Mrs Smita Khaitan 

 

Re-appointed as Independent Director for a  

period of Five years with effect from 26th 
September, 2019 

 

NA 0.73 

Mr. Ramesh Kumar 

Maheshwari 

Appointed as Independent Director for a period 

of Five years with effect from 16th July, 2019 
 

NA 0.53 
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* No Commission, Perquisites and Other Allowances were paid to any Director during the year under review. 
** The sitting fees include fees paid for committee meetings. The Company does not pay any performance incentive or 

severance fees. Apart from the above-mentioned remuneration, the Company had no pecuniary relationship or 
transactions with the Non-Executive Directors during the year under review. 

*** None of the Directors hold any stock option in the Company. 

There is no Executive Director in the Company apart from Mr. Varun Agrawal, Managing Director of the Company. The 
details of terms of appointment including notice period etc. was provided in the notice of the AGM relating to his appointment. 

The Non-Executives Directors are only receiving sitting fees for attending the Meeting of the Board and the Committees of the 
Board. The criteria for making payment to Non-Executive Directors is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company which 

forms the part of the Directors’ Report. The Remuneration Policy of the Company can be viewed here: 

http://www.manaksiasteels.com/upload/media/26022019/Remuneration-Policy_Manaksia%20Steels_111-26022019.pdf  

 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee  
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations, the Company has in place the 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee. 
 

The terms of reference of the Committee inter-alia includes the following: 
1. Redressal of shareholder and investor complaints like transfer of shares, allotment of shares, non-receipts of the refund 

orders, right entitlement, non-receipt of Annual Reports and other entitlements, non-receipt of declared dividends, 
interests, etc; 

2. Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders. 

3. Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various services being rendered by 
the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. 

4. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum of unclaimed 
dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the 

company. 
5. Reference to statutory and regulatory authorities regarding investor grievances; 

6. To ensure proper and timely attendance and redressal of investor queries and grievances; 

7. Oversee the performance of Registrar and Share Transfer Agent; 
8. To approve the request for transfer, transmission, etc. of shares; 

9. To approve the dematerialization of shares and rematerialisation of shares, splitting and consolidation of Equity Shares 
and other securities issued by the Company; 

10. Review of cases for refusal of transfer / transmission of shares and/or any other securities as may be issued by the 
Company from time to time, if any; 

11. To review from time to time, overall working of the Secretarial Department of the Company relating to the shares  of our 

Company and functioning of the Share Transfer Agent and other related matters. 
12. To consider and approve issue of duplicate / split / consolidated share certificates; 

13. To issue duplicate certificates and new certificates on split / consolidation / renewal etc. 
14. Such other matters as may from time to time be required by any statutory, contractual or other regulatory requirements to 

be attended by the committee. 
 

Composition 
As on 31st March, 2020 the Committee comprised of two Independent Directors, one Executive Director and one Non-

Executive Director. Mrs. Smita Khaitan (Independent Woman Director), Mr. Ramesh Kumar Maheshwari (Independent 
Director), Mr. Varun Agrawal (Executive-Director) and Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal (Non-Executive Director) are members of 

the Committee. The members elect one of the non executive director among themselves as the Chairman of the Committee in  
each meeting. Mr. Ajay Sharma, Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary & Compliance Officer to the 

Committee.  
 

Meeting and Attendance 
1 (One) Stakeholders Relationship Committee meeting was held during the financial year. The date on which the Stakeholder 

Relationship Committee meeting was held is 30th May, 2019. The details of attendance of members are as under: 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

29 ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20 

Name of the Members No. of meetings during the financial year 
2019-20 

Held Attended 

Mrs Smita Khaitan 1 1 

Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal 1 1 

Mr. Varun Agrawal 1 1 

Mr. Ramesh Kumar Maheshwari* - - 

 
* Inducted in the stakeholders Relationship committee w.e.f. 16th July, 2019. 

 
Investors’ Complaints 
Details of Investors Complaints received and redressed during the Financial Year 2019-20: 

 

Opening 
Balance 

Received during the year Resolved during 
the year 

Closing Balance 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 
It is the endeavour of the Company to attend investors’ complaints and other correspondence within 15 days of receipt except 

where constrained by disputes or legal impediments. In terms of SEBI circular, the Company has obtained necessary SCORES 
(SEBI Complaints Redressal System) authentication. This has facilitated the investors to view online status of the action taken 

against the complaints made by logging on to SEBI’s website: www.sebi.gov.in.  
 

Mr. Ajay Sharma, Company Secretary of the Company has been designated as Compliance Officer for speedy redressal of the 
Investor complaints. As on date of the Report, the Company affirms that no shareholder’s complaint is pending under 

SCORES.  

 
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
The Company has in place the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and as on 31 st March, 2020; the Committee 

comprised of two Independent Directors, one Executive Director and one Non-executive Director. The terms of reference of the 
committee are in compliance with the requirements of the Act and rules made thereunder. Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal (Non-

Executive Director), Mr. Varun Agrawal (Managing Director), Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri (Independent Director) and Mrs. 

Smita Khaitan (Independent Woman Director) are members of the Committee. The Company Secretary of the Company acts as 
Secretary to the Committee. 

 
Meeting and Attendance 
Two meetings of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee were held during the financial year on 30th May, 2019 and 11th 
November, 2019. The details of attendance of members are as under: 

 

Name of the Member No. of meeting during the financial year 2019-20 

Held Attended 

Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal 2 2 

Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri  2 2 

Mr. Varun Agrawal 2 2 

Mrs. Smita Khaitan* 1 1 

*Inducted in the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee w.e.f. 16 th July, 2019. 
 
Committee of Directors 
The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted a Committee of Directors comprising of Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal 

(Non-Executive Director), Mr. Varun Agrawal (Managing Director), Mr. Mrinal Kanti Pal (Non-Executive Director) and Mrs. 
Smita Khaitan (Independent Woman Director).The Board has delegated certain powers to the Committee of Directors as 

permitted, pursuant to Section 179(3) of the Act and / or not restricted by the Secretarial Standards -1. 
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Meeting and Attendance 
4 (Four) meetings of Committee of Directors were held during the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 on 11th June, 2019; 
26th July, 2019; 16th December, 2019; 21st January, 2020 and 19th February, 2020. The details of attendance of members are as 

under: 
 

Name of the Members No. of meetings during the financial year 2019-20 

Held Attended 

Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal 4 4 

Mr. Varun Agrawal 4 4 

Mr. Mrinal Kanti Pal 4 4 

Mrs. Smita Khaitan* - - 

 
* inducted as the member of the Committee of Directors w.e.f. 13th February, 2020. 
 

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 
 
(A) Annual General Meetings : 

The location and time of last three AGMs held is as under: 
 

No. Financial 
Year / 
Time 

Date Venue No. of 
Special 

Resolution 
passed 

18th AGM 
 

2018-19 
12.30 P.M. 

 

25.09.2019 Bhasha Bhawan, National Library 
Auditorium, Near Alipore Zoo, 

Belvedere Road, Kolkata- 700 027 

6 

17th AGM 2017-18 

12.30 P.M. 
 

27.09.2018 Bhasha Bhawan, National Library 

Auditorium, Near Alipore Zoo, 
Belvedere Road, Kolkata- 700 027 

3 

16th AGM 2016-17 

12.30 P.M 

22.09.2017 Bhasha Bhawan, National Library 

Auditorium, Near Alipore Zoo, 
Belvedere Road, Kolkata- 700 027 

2 

 
 
 (B)  Extra-Ordinary General Meeting 

During the financial year 2019-20 no Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Company was held. 

 

(C)  Special resolution through Postal Ballot 
No Special Resolution was passed through the postal ballot during financial year 2019-20. None of the business 
proposed to be transacted in the ensuing Annual General Meeting requires passing of Special Resolution through 

postal ballot. 
 

Secretarial Audit Report 
The Company has undertaken Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2019-20 which, inter-alia, includes audit of compliance 

with the Act and the Rules made thereunder, the Listing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India, Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and other applicable laws, if any. Pursuant to the provisions of 

Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of 
Directors of the Company had appointed Vinod Kothari & Company, Practising Company Secretaries, to conduct Secretarial 

Audit of the Company for the financial year 2019-20.  
 

SEBI vide its Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated 8th February, 2019 has specified that the listed entities shall 
additionally, on an annual basis, require a check by a Company Secretary in Practice on compliance of all applicable SEBI 

Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder and accordingly your Company has appointed Bajaj Todi & 
Associates (formerly PS & Associates), Practicing Company Secretaries to carry out necessary audit for the FY 2019-20. A 

certificate received from Bajaj Todi & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries was placed before the Board and was filed 

with the Stock Exchanges where the securities of the Company are listed. 
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MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 
The Board of Directors of the Company approves and takes on record the quarterly, half-yearly and yearly financial results in 
the format prescribed under Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations. 

 
The Company sends such approved financial results to BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited. These 

results are also been published in leading newspapers like Business Standard (English) and Ek Din (Bengali). 

 
The financial results and the official news releases of the Company are displayed on the website of the Company at 

www.manaksiasteels.com. 
 
As mandated by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), the Company will send Annual Report, Notices, etc. to the shareholders 

at their email address registered with their Depository Participants and /or Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent 
(RTA). To continue its support to the GREEN INITIATIVES measures of MCA, the Company has requested shareholders to 

register and /or update their email address with the Company’s RTA, in case of shares held in physical mode and with their 

respective Depository Participants, in case of shares held in dematerialized mode. 
 

The Company has not made any presentation to the institutional investors /analysts during the financial year 2019-20. 
 

In compliance with the requirement of the Listing Regulations, the official website of the Company contains information about 
its business, shareholding pattern, compliance with corporate governance, contact information of the compliance officer, etc. 

and the same are updated regularly. 

 
SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 
All subsidiaries of the Company are managed by their respective Board of Directors in the best interest of those companies and 

their shareholders. 
 

Pursuant to the Listing Regulations, the minutes of the Board meetings of the subsidiary companies and statement containing 
all significant transactions and arrangements entered into by subsidiary companies, as and when required, are placed before 

the Board. The financial statements of the subsidiary companies are reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Company. The 

disclosure as required under Section 129(3) of the Act in Form AOC-1, forms part of this Annual Report.  
 

Policy on Material Subsidiary 

The Company has formulated a policy for determining material subsidiaries and the same is available on the website of the 

Company- www.manaksiasteels.com and the weblink thereto is http://www.manaksiasteels.com/upload/media/corporate-
policies/Policy-for-determining-Material-Subsidiaries.pdf 
 

DISCLOSURES 
 
Related Party Transactions 
The transactions entered into with Related Parties during the financial year 2019-20 were on arm’s length basis and in the 

ordinary course of business pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its 
Powers) Rules, 2014.  

 
Pursuant to the requirement of the Act and Listing Regulations, your Company has formulated a Policy on Related Party 

Transactions which is also available at Company’s website www.manaksiasteels.com and the weblink thereto is 

http://www.manaksiasteels.com/upload/media/corporate-policies/Policy-on-Related-Party-Transactions.pdf  The Policy 

intends to ensure that proper reporting; approval and disclosure processes are in place for all transactions between the 

Company and Related Parties. 
 

The details of the related party transactions have been disclosed by way of Note No. 38 of Financial Statements 2019-20. 
 

Details of Non Compliance by the Company 
 

As mentioned in the Secretarial Audit Report the Company had duly complied with the provisions of the Listing Regulations 

by submitting the financial results for the quarter ended March, 2019 with the National Stock Exchange of India Limited within 
the stipulated time. The Company had also uploaded the full results in BSE website (standalone and consolidated) in XBRL 

format on the same day immediately after the Board meeting. However, due to repeated technical glitches faced by the  
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Company, it had made one day delay in submitting the results in ‘quick results’ format with the BSE Limited. Accordingly, as 

per the SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2018/77 dated May 03, 2018, the BSE Limited has vide its letter dated 
June 17, 2019 imposed a fine of Rs. 5,000/- plus applicable taxes on the Company, which the Company had paid.  

 

As detailed in the previous year’s Corporate Governance Report, BSE Limited and NSE Limited had imposed fine upon the 
Company for non compliance with Regulation 17(1) of the Listing Regulations. The Company had paid fine, rectified the 

unintentional default and filed application before relevant committees of the respective exchanges for waiver of fine. The NSE 
Limited, based on the Company’s application has waived the fine and refunded the fine amount. The waiver application before 

BSE Limited is pending as on date. 
 

There were no other non-compliances by the Company and no instances of penalties and strictures imposed on the Company 

by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any other statutory authority during the last three years. 
 

Material significant related party transactions which may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large: 
The Company does not have any material significant related party transactions which may have potential conflict with the 
interests of the Company at large. 

 
Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or through qualified institution placement 
The Company has not raised any amount through preferential allotment or through qualified institution placement during the 

financial year under review. 
 

Certificate from Practising Company Secretary  
The Company has received a certificate from M/s Bajaj Todi & Associates (formerly PS and Associates) (CP No. 7270), 
Company Secretary in Practice that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified 

from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such 
statutory authority. A copy of the said certificate is enclosed and forming part of this Annual Report. 

 

Recommendation from the Committees to the Board 
There was no such instance where the Board has not accepted the recommendations of / submissions by the Committees 
which were required for the approval of the Board of Directors during the Financial Year under review. 

 
Details of total fees paid to the Statutory Auditor 
 

The Company has paid Rs. 6,00,000/- (Rupees Six Lakhs Only) to the Statutory Auditors as the statutory audit fees for the 
Financial year 2019-20.  

 
The Company or any of its subsidiaries has not received any other services from any entity in the network firm/ network entity 

of which the Statutory Auditor is a part.  
 

Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013: 
 
Details of Complaints received and redressed during the Financial Year 2019-20: 

 

Opening 
Balance 

Received during the year Resolved during 
the year 

Closing Balance 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 
Compliance with Mandatory Requirements 
The Company has complied with all applicable mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations. The Company has 

complied with all the applicable requirements of corporate governance as specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and sub-regulation 
(2) of Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations. The Company has complied with all the requirement of Corporate Governance 

Report as stated under sub-Para (2) to (10) of section (C) of Schedule V to the Listing Regulations. 
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Accounting Treatment 
Your Company has followed all the relevant Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) while preparing the Financial Statements. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
Management Discussion and Analysis Report  
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report is forming part of this Annual Report. 

 
Disclosure regarding Appointment/Re-appointment of the Directors 

As required under Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations, particulars of Directors  seeking appointment/re-appointment at 
the forthcoming 19th AGM will be given in the Notice of the ensuing 19th AGM. 

 
Resignation of Directors 
During the financial year 2019-20, none of the Directors have resigned from their Directorship. 

 
Foreign Exchange Risk 

The Company does not speculate in foreign exchange. The Company’s policy is to actively manage its foreign exchange risk 
within the framework laid down by the Company’s risk management policy approved by the Board.  

 
Proceeds from Public Issue 
During the financial year 2019-20, the Company has not made any public issue. 
 
Chief Executive Officer/ Chief Financial Officer Certification 

 
The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company have given a certificate to the Board of 
Directors of the Company under Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations for the year ended 31st March, 2020. The said 

certificate forms a part of this Annual Report. Pursuant to Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations, the CEO and CFO of the 
Company also provide the quarterly certification on Financial Results while placing the same before the Board. 

 
Compliance Certificate of the Auditors 
Certificate from the Company’s Auditor Agrawal Tondon & Co., Chartered Accountants, confirming compliance with 

conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations forms part of the Annual Report.  
 
Code for Prevention of Insider Trading Practices 
The Company has instituted mechanism to avoid Insider Trading and abusive self-dealing. In accordance with the SEBI 

(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (“PIT Regulations”) as amended, the Company has established systems and 
procedures to restrict insider trading activity and has framed a Code of Conduct to regulate, monitor and report trading by 

insiders. All the Directors, Designated Persons, Officers and other Connected Persons of the Company are governed by the 

Code and accordingly, the Directors, Designated Persons, Officers and connected persons cannot use his or her position or 
knowledge of the Company to gain personal benefit or to provide benefit to any third party. 

 
The objective of this Code is to prevent misuse of any unpublished price sensitive information and prohibit any insider trading 

activity, in order to protect the interest of the stakeholders at large. The Company has adopted Prohibition of Insider Trading 
code and a Code of Practices  and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information, in line with the 

PIT Regulations as amended. 

 
The particulars regarding dealing in Company’s shares by Directors, Designated Persons, Officers and Connected Persons are 

placed before the Board at its next meeting. The Code also prescribes sanction framework and any instance of breach of code is 
dealt in accordance with the same. A copy of the said Code is made available to all employees of the Company and compliance 

of the same is ensured.  
 

The Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information is available on the 

website of the Company www.manaksiasteels.com and the weblink thereto is 

http://www.manaksiasteels.com/upload/media/03-04-2019/Code%20of%20Conduct%20for%20Regulating-Monitoring-
03042019.pdf 
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AFFIRMATION AND DISCLOSURE 
 
There were no material financial or commercial transaction, between the Company and members of the Management that may 

have a potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large. 

 
All details relating to financial and commercial transactions where Directors may have a pecuniary interest are provided to the 

Board and the interested Directors neither participate in the discussion nor vote on such matters. 
 

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 

a) Annual General Meeting  

Date, time and venue : 

 

As mentioned in the notice conveying the 19th Annual General Meeting for the 

financial year 2019-20. 
 

b) Financial calendar  1st April, 2020 – 31st March, 2021. The Financial results will be declared as per 

the following schedule: 

 

Particulars  Schedule 

Quarter ended 30th June, 2020 On or before 14th August, 2020 (Tentative) 

Quarter ended 30th September, 2020 On or before 14th November, 2020 (Tentative) 

Quarter ended 31st December, 2020 On or before 14th February, 2021(Tentative) 

Annual Results of 2020-21 On or before 30th May, 2021 (Tentative) 

 

The above schedule may change, depending upon the preventive measures and advisory as may be issued by the various 

Government and Statutory authorities to combat the prevailing nationwide threat of Covid -19 pandemic. 

 

Dates of Book Closure:  
 
As mentioned in the notice convening the 19th Annual General Meeting for the Financial Year 2019-20. 

 

c) Address and Bank Details  
Shareholders holding shares in the certificate form are requested to promptly advise Registrar and Transfer Agent 

(RTA) of any change in their address / mandate / bank details etc. to facilitate better servicing.  
 

d) Service of Documents 
The Company sends Notices, Report and Accounts and other communications in electronic mode to those 
Shareholders who have registered their e-mail addresses with the Company or with the Depositories and in physical 

mode to the other Shareholders. Shareholders who wish to register or update their e-mail addresses may send their 

request to the RTA or the Company. 
 

e) Permanent Account Number (PAN) 
Shareholders holding shares in the certificate form are requested to send copies of their PAN Cards to RTA to facilitate 
better servicing. Furnishing of PAN Card, however, is mandatory as follows:  

i) Transferees’ and Transferors’ PAN Cards for transfer of shares,  
ii) Legal heirs’ / Nominees’ PAN Cards for transmission of shares,  

iii) Surviving joint holders’ PAN Cards for deletion of name of deceased Shareholder, and  

iv) Joint holders’ PAN Cards for transposition of shares.  
 

f) Nomination Facility  
Shareholders who hold shares in the certificate form and wish to make any nomination / change nomination made 
earlier in respect of their shareholding in the Company, should submit to RTA the prescribed Form. 
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g) Listing on Stock Exchanges:   
 
The shares of the Company are listed on the following stock exchanges: 
 

(i) National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) 
     Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block “G” 

     Bandra Kurla Complex, 
     Bandra East, Mumbai- 400051 

     SYMBOL: MANAKSTEEL 

  
                   (ii ) BSE Limited (BSE) 

 Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers  
 Dalal Street,  Mumbai- 400001  

 Scrip Code: 539044 
 

The annual listing fees have been paid to the Stock Exchanges for the financial year 2020-2021. 

 
h) Custodial Fees to Depositories: Annual Custody/Issuer fee for the year 2020-21 will be paid to CDSL and NSDL upon 

receipt of the bills. 

 
i) Unclaimed shares lying in the Demat Suspense Account: 

The Company has opened a separate demat account in the name of “Manaksia Steels Limited-Suspense Account” in 

order to credit the unclaimed shares of the IPO of Manaksia Limited which could not be allotted to the rightful 

shareholders due to insufficient/incorrect information or for any other reason. The voting rights in respect of said 
shares will be frozen till the time the rightful owner claims such shares. In terms of requirement of Listing Regulations, 

the details of shares lying in the aforesaid demat account are as follows: 
 

Particulars No. of Shares No. of shareholders  

Aggregate number of shareholders and the 
outstanding shares in the suspense account lying 

at the beginning of the year i.e. 1st April, 2019. 

 

3149 

 

36 

Number of shareholders who approached 

Company for transfer of shares from suspense 
account during the year. 

 

0 

 

0 

Number of shareholders to whom shares were 

transferred from suspense account during the 

year. 

 

0 

 

0 

Aggregate number of shareholders and the 
outstanding shares in the suspense account lying 

at the end of the year i.e. 31st March, 2020. 

 

3149 

 

36 

 

Any corporate benefits in terms of securities accruing on such shares viz. bonus shares, split, etc., shall also be credited to 
aforesaid suspense account. Shareholders who have yet not claimed their shares are requested to immediately approach the 

Company/Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company along with documentary evidence, i f any. 
 

j) Stock Code / Symbol : ISIN No.: INE824Q01011 

   National Stock Exchange of India Limited: MANAKSTEEL 
   BSE Limited: 539044 

 
k) Share Transfer System:  

99.99% of shares of the Company are held in electronic mode. Intimation about transfer/transmission of these shares to 

RTA is done through the depositories i.e. NSDL & CDSL with no involvement of the Company. 
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Effective from 1st April, 2019, transfer of shares of a listed company can only be affected in dematerialised form in 

terms of Listing Regulations. Shareholders holding shares in the certificate form are therefore requested to 
dematerialise their shares in their own interest. Communication in this respect had been sent by the Company to the 

concerned Shareholders. However, transfer deeds which were lodged with the Company on or before 31st March, 

2019, if any, but were returned due to any deficiency, will be processed upon re-lodgement. 
  

The half yearly Compliance Certificate pursuant to Regulation 40(9) of Listing Regulations for the half year ended 30th 
September, 2019 and for 31st March, 2020 received from Drolia & Co., Practicing Company Secretary (CP No. 1362) has 

been submitted to the Stock Exchanges within the stipulated time. 
 

Pursuant to provisions of Regulation 76 of the SEBI (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018 the Company has 
submitted Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report received from Meenakshi Agarwal, Practicing Company 

Secretary (CP No. 8292) on quarterly basis to the Stock Exchanges within the stipulated time. 

 
l) Market Price Data 

 
The details of monthly high and low quotations of the equity shares of the Company traded at BSE and NSE during the 

financial year 2019-20 are given hereunder: 
 

Month  BSE Limited (BSE) National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
(NSE) 

High 
(Rs.) 

 

Low 
(Rs.) 

 

Total Number of 
Shares Traded 

High 
(Rs.) 

 

Low 
(Rs.) 

 

Total Number 
of 

Shares Traded 

April, 2019 24.00 17.80 24335 22.95 18.05 130492 

May, 2019 21.00 14.60 55324 21.25 15.40 270302 

June, 2019 20.90 16.50 33314 20.50 16.60 126735 

July, 2019 18.95 11.05 55425 19.45 11.60 418691 

August, 2019 15.70 10.10 23733 17.20 10.55 160053 

September, 2019 12.85 10.46 17277 13.80 11.00 120997 

October, 2019 12.90 8.55 31156 12.65 9.55 119229 

November, 2019 11.99 8.82 58078 11.90 8.90 199685 

December, 2019 15.43 7.13 202892 15.75 7.10 4556210 

January, 2020 15.38 10.96 58158 15.50 10.60 891729 

February, 2020 11.19 8.57 41677 11.50 8.55 467380 

March, 2020 9.43 5.92 425771 9.70 5.95 295339 

 
Performance in Comparison with BSE Sensex: 
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m) Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA): 
 

Link Intime India Private Limited is acting as the RTA of the Company. The address of the RTA is given hereunder: 
 

Link Intime India Private Limited 
Vaishno Chamber, 6 Brabourne Road. 

Room No. 502 & 503, 5th Floor, Kolkata- 700001 

Ph: +91-22-4918 6000, Fax: +91-22-4918 6060 
Contact Person: Mr. Kuntal Mustafi, Email id: kolkata@linkintime.co.in 
 

n) Distribution of Equity Shareholding as on March 31, 2020: 
 

No. of Equity shares held Shareholders Shares 
From – To Number % Total 

Holders 

Number % Total 

Capital 
1 – 500 20728 91.60 2087862 3.19 

501 – 1000 868 3.84 701099 1.07 

1001 – 2000 453 2.00 695125 1.06 

2001 – 3000 169 0.74 437107 0.67 

3001 – 4000 76 0.34 273785 0.42 

4001 – 5000 59 0.26 278067 0.42 

5001 – 10000 123 0.54 912569 1.39 

10001 – And above 153 0.68 60148436 91.78 

TOTAL 22629 100.00 6,55,34,050 100.00 
 

 

o) Categories of Equity Shareholders as on March 31, 2020 
 

Sl. 
No. 

Category No. of 
Shares 

% of 
Shareholdings 

1 Promoters Group  48985319 74.74 

2 Mutual Funds & UTI Nil Nil 

3 Financial Institutions / Banks 1363 0.00 

4 Central Government / State Government(s) Nil Nil 

5 Venture Capital Fund  Nil Nil 

6 Foreign Institutional Investors  Nil Nil 

7 Foreign Venture Capital Investors  Nil Nil 

8 Bodies Corporate 3699130 5.64 

9 Public  10938894 16.70 

10 NRI’s / OCB’s / Foreign National 378973 0.58 

11 Clearing Members  20029 0.03 

12 Hindu Undivided Family (HUF) 673196 1.03 

13 Trusts Nil Nil 

14 Foreign Portfolio Investors (Corporate) 837146 1.28 

15 NBFC’s registered with RBI Nil Nil 

 TOTAL 6,55,34,050 100 

 
The non-promoter shareholding is in accordance with the conditions stipulated in the listing Regulations. 
 

p) Dematerialization of Equity Shares 
 

The shares of the Company are currently traded only in dematerialized form and the Company has entered into 
agreements with the depositories i.e. National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services 

(India) Limited (CDSL). Under the Depository system, the International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) 

allotted to the Company’s shares is INE824Q01011. As on 31st March 2020, 6,55,33,094  equity shares representing 
about 99.99% of the share capital are held in dematerialized form. 

q) Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants / Other Convertible instruments:  
 

The company does not have any outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants / Other Convertible instruments as on 31st 

March 2020. 
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r) Commodity Price Risk and Hedging Activities: 
 
The Company considers exposure to commodity price fluctuations to be an integral part of i ts business and its usual 
policy is to sell its products at prevailing market prices, and not to enter into price hedging arrangements. 

 

s) Plants Locations (Manufacturing Units as on 31st March, 2020) 
 

471, Birsinghapur, Barjora  

Bankura – 722 202 

1, Bhuniaraichak, Jhikurkhali, Haldia,  

Purva Mednipur, West Bengal 
 

Address for Correspondence:   Manaksia Steels Limited 

  Turner Morrison Building, 

6, Lyons Range, 1st Floor, Kolkata – 700 001 
  Phone No: +91-33-2231 0055 

 Email: investorrelmsl@manaksia.com 
  Website: www.manaksiasteels.com 

 
t) Credit Rating:   

 
The Company obtained credit rating from CARE Ratings Limited.  The credit rating w.r.t. Long  

Term Bank Facilities is CARE A; Negative (Single A; Outlook: Negative) and credit rating w.r.t. Short Term Bank 
Facilities is CARE A1 (A One).  

 
COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 
 

The Board of Directors periodically reviewed the compliance of all applicable laws and steps taken by the Company to rectify 
instances of non compliances, if any. The Company is in compliance with all mandatory requirements of Listing Regulations. 

The Company has complied with the applicable requirements specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and Regulation 46(2) of 
Listing Regulations. 

 
COMPLIANCE OFFICER 
 

In accordance with Regulation 6 of the Listing Regulations, the Company Secretary acts as the Compliance Officer of the 
Company. The details of the compliance officer are: 

 
Mr. Ajay Sharma 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer  
Manaksia Steels Limited, 

Turner Morrison Building, 

6, Lyons Range, 1st Floor, 
Kolkata – 700 001,  

Phone No: +91-33-2231 0055 
Fax: +91-33 2230 0336 

 
DISCRETIONARY REQUIREMENTS UNDER REGULATION 27 OF LISTING REGULATIONS 
 

The status of compliance with discretionary recommendations of Regulation 27 of the Listing Regulations is provided below: 
 

 Shareholders’ Rights: As the quarterly and half yearly financial performance along with significant events are 
published in the news papers and are also posted on the Company’s website, the same are not being sent to the 
shareholders. 

 

 Modified Opinion in Auditors Report: The Company’s financial statement for the financial year 2019-20 does not 
contain any modified audit opinion. 
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 Reporting of Internal Auditor: The Internal Auditor of the Company directly reports  to the Audit Committee on 
functional matters. 

 

 

                                                                                                                For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 

Place: Kolkata         Varun Agrawal  Mrinal Kanti Pal 
Dated: 15th July, 2020                Managing Director Director 

         DIN: 00441271   DIN: 00867865 
 

 

 
CEO / CFO Certification 

 
The Board of Directors 
Manaksia Steels Limited 
 

Dear Sirs/Madam, 
 
We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of Manaksia Steels Limited (‘ the Company’) for the 

financial year ended 31st March, 2020 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that: 
 

(a)   (i)  these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that 
might be misleading; 

(ii)  these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing 

accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 
 

(b)  There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are 
fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct. 

 
(c)   We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting. We have evaluated the 

effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and have disclosed to the 

auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are 
aware and the steps taken or proposed to be taken for rectifying these deficiencies. 

 
(d)  We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee 

 (i)  significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 

(ii)  significant changes, if any, in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to 
the financial statements; and 

(iii) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management 
or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting. 

 
 For Manaksia Steels Limited 

           

 
Date : 15th July, 2020 

Place : Kolkata  

 
Vineet Agrawal 

(Chief Executive Officer) 
 

 
Rajesh Singhania 

(Chief Financial Officer) 
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AUDITORS CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
To 

The Members of Manaksia  Steels Limited  
 

1. This Certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 30th September 2019. 

 
2. We, Agrawal Tondon & Co., Chartered Accountants, the statutory auditors of Manaksia Steels Limited (“the 

Company”), have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by the Company, for the year 
ended on 31st March, 2020, as per the relevant provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) as amended. 
 

Management’s Responsibility 
 

3. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. This 
responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure 

compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in the Listing Regulations. 
 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
 

4. Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring 
the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on 

the financial statements of the Company.  
5. We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Company 

for the purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements 

by the Company. 
6. We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Guidance 

Note on Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of India (the 
“ICAI”), the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013, in so far as 

applicable for the purpose of this certificate and as per the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special 
Purposes issued by the ICAI which requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics 

issued by the ICAI. 
7. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality 

Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and 

Related Services Engagements. 
 

Opinion 
 

Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations provided to 

us and the representations provided by the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the 

conditions of Corporate Governance as per relevant provisions during the year ended 31st March, 2020. 
 

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency 

or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.  

For Agrawal Tondon & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. – 329088E 
 

Kaushal Kejriwal        
Partner         

Membership No 308606 

UDIN: 20308606AAAADB8689 

 
Place: Kolkata  
Date: July 15, 2020 
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT OF THE COMPANY 

 

This is to confirm that the Company has received declarations affirming compliance of the Code of Conduct from the Board of 
Directors and Senior Management concerned for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2020. 

 
 

    (Varun Agrawal) 

                      Managing Director 
                              DIN: 00441271 

Date: 15th July, 2020                
Place: Kolkata   

 

 
 

NO DISQUALIFICATION CERTIFICATE FROM COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE 
 

I, Priti Todi, Partner of Bajaj Todi & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries do hereby certify that none of the directors on 
the board of Manaksia Steels Limited have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or from continuing as directors 

of Companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India or Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority to 
the best of my knowledge. 

 
This certificate is being issued as per Schedule V under Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations 2015. 

 
Issued this 9th day of June, 2020 at Kolkata. 

 
For Bajaj Todi & Associates  

 
(Priti Todi) 

Partner 

C.P. No. 7270, ACS: 14611  
UDIN: A014611B000329178 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 

  
ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20 42 

 

ANNEXURE - C 

Form No. MR-3  
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE PERIOD FROM APRIL 1, 2019 TO MARCH 31, 2020 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule no.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 

 

To  
The Members,  

Manaksia Steels Limited 
Turner Morrison Building, 6 Lyons Range, 

1st Floor, 
Kolkata-700001, West Bengal  

 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Manaksia Steels Limited (hereinafter called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a  

manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our 
opinion thereon.   

 
Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 

by the Company (as per Annexure – A1, hereinafter referred to as “Books and Papers”) and also the information provided by 

the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that 
in our opinion, the Company has, during the period covered by our audit, that is to say, from April 01, 2019 to March 31, 2020 

(hereinafter referred to as “Audit Period”), complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 
has proper board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 

hereinafter:   
 

We have examined the Books and Papers maintained by the Company for the Audit Period according to the provisions of: 
 

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder; 

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the rules made thereunder;  
3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the regulations and bye-laws framed thereunder;  

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings, as may be applicable;  

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 

(“SEBI Act”):-  
 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (“LODR/Listing Regulations”); 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011; 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2018 (to the extent applicable); 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993; 

6. Secretarial Standards 1 and 2 as issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India; 
7. Laws specifically applicable to the industry to which the Company belongs: We have been intimated by the 

Company that the Company has complied with the following specific laws as applicable to it: 

 
a. The Indian Boilers Act, 1923 and rules/regulations made thereunder  

b. Inflammable Substances Act, 1952 
c. The Indian Explosives Act, 1884 and the Static and Mobile Pressure Vessels (Unfired) Rules, 2016 

d. Hazardous Waste (Management, Handling and Transboundary Movements) Rules,	2008.	
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Management Responsibility: 
 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express  
an  opinion  on  these  secretarial  records  based  on  our  audit; 

 
2. We have followed the audit practices and the processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 

correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are 

reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes  and  practices,  we  followed  provide  a  reasonable  basis  for  
our  opinion; 

 
3. Wherever our Audit has required our examination of books and records maintained by the Company, we have also relied 

upon electronic versions of such books and records, as provided to us through online communication. Wherever for the 
purposes of our Audit, there was a need for physical access to any of the places of business of the Company, the same has 

taken place with very limited physical access in view of the prevailing lockdown due to the outbreak of COVID-19. 

 
4. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the Company as 

well as correctness of the values and figures reported in various disclosures and returns as required to be submitted by the 
Company under the specified laws, though we have relied to a certain extent on the information furnished in such returns. 

 
5. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulation 

and happening of events etc; 

 
6. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility 

of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis; 
 

7. The contents of this Report has to be read in conjunction with and not in  isolation of the observations, if any, in the 
report(s) furnished/to be furnished by any other auditor(s )/agencies/authorities with respect to the Company.   

 
8. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 
The observations, if any, mentioned in this report are in addition to the observations and qualifications, if any, made by the 

statutory auditors of the Company or any other professional and the same has not been reproduced herein for the sake of 
repetition.  

 
During the Audit Period, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc. 

mentioned above subject to the following observations: 

 
Receipt of letter from Stock Exchange imposing fine for late submission of financial results for the quarter ended March, 2019 

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations, companies are required to furnish the quarterly financial result 
within 45 days from the end of the quarter. However, for the last quarter, the company has to submit within 60 days from the end of the 
financial year, the Audited Financial Results for the entire Financial Year alongwith the audited financial results in respect of the last 
quarter (balancing figure) along with the Auditors Report.  

During the Audit Period, it was observed that the Company had duly complied with the provisions of the Listing  Regulations by submitting 
the financial results for the quarter ended March, 2019 with the National Stock Exchange of India Limited within the stipulated time. The 

Company had also uploaded the full results in BSE website	 (standalone	and	 consolidated)	 in	 XBRL	 format	on	 the	 same	 day	
immediately	after	the	Board	meeting.		However,	due	to	repeated	technical	glitches	faced	by	the	Company,	it	had	made	one	
day	delay	in	submitting	the	results	in	‘quick	results’	format	with	the	BSE	Limited.			

Accordingly, as per the SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2018/77 dated May 03, 2018, the BSE Limited has vide its letter 

dated June 17, 2019 imposed a fine of Rs. 5,000/- plus applicable taxes on the Company.	
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The Company had duly paid the fine and the Board of Directors had taken note of the same in its meeting held on 16 th July, 2019. 
 
B. Waiver by National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) of fine imposed by it w.r.t. fine levied for non-compliance of 
corporate governance requirements under Listing Regulations  
 
During the Audit Period, it was observed that the Company had w.r.t. the corporate governance requirements as per Regulation 17(1) of the 
Listing Regulations, for the quarter ended December 31, 2018 and the period from 1st January, 2019 till 14th February, 2019, received a 
letter from stock exchanges. The both, NSE and the BSE Limited each as per the SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2018/77 
dated May 03, 2018, have imposed fine for the quarter ended 31st December, 2018 and for the period from 1st January, 2019 to 14th 
February, 2019 for not complying with certain provisions of Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations.  
 
On the basis of representations made and the material facts produced by the Company before it, NSE held that the Company was in 

compliance with the aforesaid provisions. Accordingly, considering  the application of waiver made by the Company, NSE had waived off the 
fine levied by it on the Company and the Board of the Company had duly taken note of the same in its meeting held on 13 th August, 2019.  
However, the application made for waiver of fine to the BSE Limited is still pending.  
 
Recommendations as a matter of best practice: 
 
In the course of our audit, we have made certain recommendations in order to improve the corporate governance practices 

therein, separately addressed to the Board of Directors, for its necessary consideration and implementation by the Company. 

The said recommendations form part of this Report. 
 

During the Audit Period, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc.  
 
We further report that: 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. The number of directors liable to retire by rotation is in compliance with provision of 152 

(6) of Act, 2013 which provides that 2/3rd of the total directors (except independent directors) of the Company shall be such 
whose period of office will be liable to determination by retirement of directors by rotation. 

All the changes in the composition of the Board of Directors during the Audit Period were made in due compliance of the 
various provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notices were given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings.  

All decisions of the board were taken with the requisite majority and recorded as part of the minutes. 

We further report that subject to above observations, the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance 
as stipulated in the Act and LODR. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes commensurate with the size and operations of the Company 
to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.  

We further report that during the Audit Period, the Company has not incurred any specific event/ action that can have a major 

bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. 
 

Place: Kolkata  
Date:  6th July, 2020                   For Vinod Kothari & Company 

Practising Company Secretaries 
_________________________________ 

Munmi Phukon 
    Partner 

Membership	No.:	A60355	
C P No.:22846 

UDIN : A060355B000419329 
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Annexure – A1 

  

LIST OF DOCUMENTS 

1. Corporate Matters  
1.1 Minutes books of the following were provided (either in draft mode or signed including electronic means): 

1.1.1 Board Meeting; 
1.1.2 Audit Committee; 

1.1.3 Nomination and Remuneration Committee; 
1.1.4 Stakeholders Relationship Committee; 

1.1.5 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee; 

1.1.6 Committee of Directors 
1.1.7 General Meeting; 

1.2 Agenda papers for Board and Committee Meetings along with Notices; 
1.3 Annual Report 2018-19; 

1.4 Financial data as received via e-mail dated June 3, 2020 and June 24, 2020; 
1.5 Disclosures under Act and Rules made thereunder;  

1.6 Registers maintained under the Act; 

1.7 Forms and returns filed with the ROC, SEBI and RBI; 
1.8 Documents under SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

1.9 Documents under SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares And Takeovers) Regulations, 2015; 
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       ANNEXURE - D 
 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHNAGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO 

 
[Pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the  Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014] 

      
A   CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 
 
Information on conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo as required to be 

disclosed under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are provided hereunder: 
 

i) Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy 
The thrust for energy conservation continued during the year across all manufacturing processes through combined use of 
systems and devices. The various measures taken during the year include: 

(a) Optimization of loading efficiency of furnace oil. 
(b) Conducting training programmes at various factories for conservation of energy. 

 
ii) Steps taken for utilizing alternate sources of energy 

The Company is constantly taking steps to identify various alternative sources of energy both for thermal and power 
generation  applications. In pursuit of its goal towards savings in energy cost, the Company while procuring new 

machinery under phased modernization/replacement program takes into account its impact on energy conservation. 
 

iii) Capital investment on energy conservation equipments: Nil  
 
B   TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 
 
i) Efforts made towards technology absorption : 

(a) Modification of manufacturing process 
(b) Improvement in Automation 

(c) Development of  new products  
(d) Installing upgraded pollution control equipment for air/water 

(e) Improvement in safety and reliability of the Plant 

 
ii) Benefits derived as a result of such efforts 

(a) Improved market share 

(b) Improvement in productivity   
(c) Energy conservation  

(d) Increase in in-house capability 
 

iii) No fresh technology has been imported during the year 
 

iv) The expenditure on Research & Development: - Nil 
 

C   FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO 
 

During the year under review foreign exchange earnings were Rs. 26,254.02 Lacs (Previous Year Rs. 40,072.97 Lacs) and foreign  

exchange outgo was Rs. 30764.62 Lacs (Previous Year Rs. 51,441.48 Lacs) 

 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 
 

Place: Kolkata                Varun Agrawal          Mrinal Kanti Pal 

Dated: 15th July, 2020                       Managing Director          Director 

                                           DIN: 00441271          DIN: 00867865 
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Annexure – E 

 
REMUNERATION POLICY 

Of  
MANAKSIA STEELS LIMITED 

 
Framed under Section 178 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 & Regulation 19 Read with Schedule II of The Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
Amended pursuant to Enactment of SEBI LODR (Amendment) Regulations, 2018 and Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017  

 
CLARIFICATIONS, AMENDMENTS AND UPDATES 

This Policy shall be implemented as per the provisions of the Applicable Law. Any amendments in the Applicable Law, 

including any clarification/ circulars of relevant regulator, shall be read into this Policy such that the Policy shall automatically 
reflect the contemporaneous Applicable Law at the time of its implementation. 

All words and expressions used herein, unless defined herein, shall have the same meaning as respectively assigned to them, in  
the Applicable Law under reference, that is to say, the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, or SEBI LODR, as  

amended, from time to time. 

I. INTERPRETATION CLAUSES 
For the purposes of this Policy references to the following shall be construed as: 

 
“Applicable Law” : shall mean the Companies Act, 2013 and allied rules  made thereunder, Securities 

and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and includes any other statute, law, standards, regulations or 

other governmental instruction as may be applicable to the Company from time to 

time. 

“Company”  : refers to Manaksia  Steels Limited. 

“Board”  refers to the Board of Directors of the Company. 

“Committee” : refers to Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Board of Directors of the 

Company 

“Directors”  : refers to the managing director and all whole-time Directors. 

“Executives” : refers to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management 
Personnel. 

“Key Managerial 
Personnel”or KMP  

: refers to the 
a.  Managing Director, Manager, Chief Executive Officer; 

b. Chief Financial Officer; 

c. Company Secretary; 
d. Officer, not more than one level below the directors who is in whole-time 

employment, designated as key managerial personnel by the Board of 
Directors of the Company; 

e.  Officers as may be prescribed under Applicable Law. 
“Policy” or “this Policy”  : shall mean the contents herein including any amendments made by the Board of 

Directors of the Company. 

“Senior Management 
Personnel” or SMP 

: shall mean officers/personnel of the listed entity who are members  of  its  core  

management  team  excluding  board  of  directors  and normally this shall 
comprise all members of management one level below the chief  executive  

officer/managing  director/whole  time  director/manager (including  chief  
executive  officer/manager,  in  case they  are not  part  of  the board)  and  shall  

specifically  include  company  secretary  and  chief  financial officer. 
 

All terms not defined herein shall take their meaning from the Applicable Law. 
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II. EFFECTIVE DATE 
 

This Policy shall become effective from the date of its adoption by the Board. 
 

III. SCOPE  
 

a) This Policy applies to all the “Executives” of the Company.  

 
b) In addition, this Policy also extends to the remuneration of non-executive Directors, including principles of selection of the 

independent Directors of the Company. 
 

c) The Board of Directors has adopted this remuneration Policy with effect from 30 th May.2019, on the recommendation of the 
Committee. This Policy shall be valid for all employment agreements entered into after the approval of the Policy for 

appointment of the Executives and for changes made to existing employment agreements thereafter. 

 

d) In order to comply with local regulations, the Company may have remuneration policies and guidelines which shall apply 

in addition to this policy. 

The Board of Directors of the Company may deviate from this Policy if there are explicit reasons to do so in individual case(s). 
Any deviations on elements of this Policy under extraordinary circumstances, when deemed necessary in the interests of the 

Company, shall be reasoned and recorded in the Board’s minutes and shall be disclosed in the Annual Report of the year at 

which the said deviations takes place. 

IV. PURPOSE  

This Policy reflects the Company’s objectives for good corporate governance as well as sustained and long-term value creation 

for stakeholders. This Policy will also help the Company to attain optimal Board diversity and create a basis for succession 
planning. In addition, it is intended to ensure that –  

  
a) the Company is able to attract, develop and retain high-performing and motivated Executives in a competitive 

international market;  

 
b)  the Executives are offered a competitive and market aligned remuneration package, with fixed salaries being a significant 

remuneration component, as permissible under the Applicable Law;  
 

c) remuneration of the Executives are aligned with the Company’s business strategies, values, key priorities and goals.  
 

V. GUIDING PRINCIPLES FOR REMUNERATION AND OTHER TERMS OF EMPLOYMENT 

The guiding principle is that the remuneration and the other terms of employment for the Executives shall be competitive in 

order to ensure that the Company may attract and retain competent Executives. In determining the Policy, the Committee 
ensures that a competitive remuneration package for all Executives is maintained and is also benchmarked with other 

multinational companies operating in national and global markets. 
 

VI. RESPONSIBILITIES AND POWERS OF THE COMMITTEE 

The Committee, in addition to the functions and powers as endued by its terms of reference, would also be responsible for –  

 
a) preparing and recommending for the Board's decisions on issues concerning principles for remunerations, sitting fees etc. 

(including pension and severance pay) and other terms of employment of Executives and Non-Executive Directors; 
b) reviewing and recommending to the Board regarding share and share-price related incentive programs, if any, to be 

decided upon by the Annual General Meeting; 

c) formulating criteria of qualifications and positive attributes to assist the Company in identifying the eligible individuals for 
the office of Executives; 

d) monitoring and evaluating programs for variable remuneration, if any, both ongoing and those that have ended during the 
year, for Executives and Non-Executive Directors; 
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e) monitoring and evaluating the application of this Policy; 
f) monitoring and evaluating current remuneration structures and levels in the Company. 

 
VII. PRINCIPLES FOR SELECTION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

The nomination of the Independent Directors  of the Company shall be in accordance with the principles as stated hereunder 
and other relevant provisions of Applicable Law: 

(a) who, in the opinion of the Board, is a person of integrity and possesses relevant expertise and experience; 

(b)  (i) who is or was not a promoter of the company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company or member of the 
promoter group of the Company; 

(ii) who is not related to promoters or directors in the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company; 

(c) who has or had no pecuniary relationship, other than remuneration as such director or having transaction not exceeding ten 
per cent of his total income or such amount as may be prescribed, with the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate 

company, or their promoters, or directors, during the two immediately preceding financial years or during the current financial 
year; 

(d) none of whose relatives— 

(i)  is holding any security of or interest in the company, i ts holding, subsidiary or associate company during the two 
immediately preceding financial years or during the current financial year: 

Provided that the relative may hold security or interest in the company of face value not exceeding fifty lakh rupees or 
two per cent. of the paid-up capital of the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company or such higher sum as 

may be prescribed; 

(ii)  is indebted to the Company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company or their promoters, or directors, for an 

amount of fi fty lakhs rupees or more at any time or such amount as may be prescribed during the two immediately 
preceding financial years or during the current financial year; 

(iii) has given a guarantee or provided any security in  connection with the indebtedness of any third person to the 

company, its holding, subsidiary or associate company or their promoters, or directors of such holding company, for 

an amount of fifty lakhs rupees or more, at any time or such amount as may be prescribed during the two immediately 
preceding financial years or during the current financial year; or 

(iv) has or had any other pecuniary transaction or relationship with the company, or its subsidiary, or its holding or 

associate company or their promoters, or directors amounting to two per cent. or more of its gross turnover or total 

income or fifty lakh rupees or such higher amount as may be prescribed, whichever is lower, singly or in combination 
with the transactions referred to in sub-clause (i), (ii) or (iii) during the two immediately preceding financial years or 

during the current financial year;; 

(e) who, neither himself nor any of his relatives— 

  (i) holds or has held the position of a key managerial personnel or is or has been an employee of the company or its  

holding, subsidiary or associate company in any of the three financial years immediately preceding the financial year 
in which he is proposed to be appointed; 

Provided that in case of a relative who is an employee, the restriction under this clause shall not apply for his 

employment during preceding three financial years. 

  (ii) is or has been an employee or proprietor or a  partner, in any of the three financial years immediately preceding the 

financial year in which he is proposed to be appointed, of— 

(A) a firm of auditors or company secretaries in practice or cost auditors of the company or its holding, subsidiary or 

associate company; or 
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(B) any legal or a consulting firm that has or had any transaction with the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate 
company amounting to ten per cent. or more of the gross turnover of such firm; 

(iii) holds together with his relatives two per cent. or more of the total voting power of the company; or 

 

(iv) is a Chief Executive or Director, by whatever name called, of any non profit organisation that receives twenty-five per cent. 
or more of its receipts from the company, any of its promoters, directors or its holding, subsidiary or associate company or that 

holds two per cent. or more of the total voting power of the company; 
 

(v) is a material supplier, service provider or customer or a lessor or lessee of the Company; 
 

(f) is not a non-independent director of another company on the board of which any non-independent director of the Company 

is an independent director. 

 
VIII. OVERALL CRITERIA FOR SELECTION OF EXECUTIVES 

The assessment for Senior Management will be done on the basis of below parameters by the concerned interview panel of 
the Company - 

a) Competencies: 

 Necessary skills ( Leadership skill, Communication skill, Managerial skill etc ) 

 Experiences & Education to successfully complete the tasks. 

 Positive background reference check. 
b) Capabilities: 

 Suitable or fit for the task or role. 

 Potential for growth and the ability and willingness to take on more responsibility. 

 Intelligent & fast learner, Good Leader, Organiser & Administrator, Good Analytical skills Creative & Innovative. 
c) Compatibility: 

 Can this person get along with colleagues, existing and potential clients and partners. 

 Strong Interpersonal Skills. 

 Flexible & Adaptable. 
d) Commitment: 

 Candidate’s seriousness about working for the long term 

 Vision & Aim 
e) Character: 

 Ethical, honest, team player 

f) Culture: 
 Fits with the Company’s culture. (Every business has a culture or a way that people behave and interact with each 

other. Culture is based on certain values, expectations, policies and procedures that influence the behavior of a leader 
and employees. Employees who don’t reflect a company’s culture tend to be disruptive and difficult) 

 Presentable and should be known for good social and corporate culture. 
 

IX. GENERAL POLICIES FOR REMUNERATION  
 

The various remuneration  components would be combined to ensure an appropriate and balanced remuneration package.  

 
1. A fixed base salary - set at a level aimed at attracting and retaining executives with professional and personal competence, 

showing good performance towards achieving Company goals. 
 

2. Perquisites – in the form of house rent allowance/ accommodation, furnishing allowance, reimbursement of medical 

expenses, conveyance, telephone, leave travel, etc. 
 

3. Retirement benefits - contribution to Provident Fund, superannuation, gratuity, etc as per Company’s Rules, subject to 
Applicable Law. 
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4. Motivation/ Reward - A performance appraisal to be carried out annually and promotions/ increments/ rewards are to be 
decided by Managing Director based on the appraisal and recommendation of the concerned Head of Departments, where 

applicable. 
 

5. Severance payments - in accordance with terms of employment, and applicable statutory requirements, if any. 
 

A. Any remuneration payable to the Executives of the Company shall abide by the following norms - 
 

i. The base salary shall be competitive and based on the individual Executive's key responsibilities and performance; 

 
ii. Base salaries would be based on a function-related salary system and be in line with the market developments shown 

by the benchmark research and additional market studies. The annual review date for the base salary would be April 
1 or any other date as may be determined by the Committee from time to time, subject to the Company’s Policy; 

 
iii. The Executives will be entitled to customary non-monetary benefits such as Company cars, phone and such other 

fixed entitled benefits;  

 
iv. Pension contributions shall be made in accordance with applicable laws and employment agreements; 

 
v. If any Director draws or receives, directly or indirectly, by way of remuneration any such sums in excess of the limit 

as prescribed or without the prior sanction, where it is required, under the Applicable law, such remuneration shall 
be refunded to the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The Company shall 

not waive the recovery of any sum refundable to it; 

 
vi. Subject to the provisions under Applicable Law, a Director who is in receipt of any commission from the Company 

and who is a managing or whole-time director of the Company shall not be disqualified from receiving any 
remuneration or commission from any holding or subsidiary company of the Company, subject to its disclosure by 

the Company in the Board’s report; 
 

vii. The Company shall make necessary disclosure of remuneration of the Executives in its Annual Report as may be 

required under Applicable Law. 
 

B. Any fee/ remuneration payable to the non-executive Directors of the Company shall abide by the following norms – 
 

i. If any such Director draws or receives, directly or indirectly, by way of fee/ remuneration any such sums in excess of 
the limit as prescribed or without the prior sanction, where it is required, under the Applicable law such remuneration 

shall be refunded to the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The Company 

shall not waive the recovery of any sum refundable to it; 
 

ii. Such Director(s) may receive remuneration by way of fee for attending meetings of the Board or Committee thereof or 
for any other purpose whatsoever as may be decided by the Board, as permissible under Applicable law. 

 
iii. An independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option and shall receive remuneration only by way of fees  

and reimbursement of expenses for participation in meetings of the Board or committee thereof and profit related 

commission, as may be permissible under the Applicable law. 

 
X. NOTICE OF TERMINATION AND SEVERANCE PAY POLICY  

 
The notice of Termination and Severance pay shall be as per the terms of appointment as mentioned in the Employment 

Agreement or Letter of Appointment. 
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XI. DISCLOSURE AND DISSEMINATION 

 

i. The Policy shall be disclosed in the Board’s report to shareholders of the Company. 
ii. The annual report of the Company would specify the details of remuneration paid to Directors.  

iii. The  Company  is required to  publish  its  criteria  of  making  payments  to  non-executive Directors  in  its  annual  

report.  Alternatively, this may also be put up on the Company’s website and reference be drawn in the annual 
report. 

iv. The Company shall place the policy on its website. 
 
Notes: 
 

1. Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee at its  meeting held on 15 th May, 2015, the 

policy was approved and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 15 th May, 2015. 
 

2. The Policy was amended in order to align the same with Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee at its meeting held on 10th 

February, 2016 and recommended to the Board of Directors for their approval. The Board of Directors  of the Company at its 
meeting held on 10th February, 2016 approved the amended policy. 

 

3. The Policy was further amended in order to align the same with Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [as amended by Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018], by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee at its meeting held on 30th 
May, 2019 and recommended to the Board of Directors for their approval. The Board of Directors of the Company at its 

meeting held on 30th May, 2019 approved the amended policy.  
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              ANNEXURE – F 
 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES/INITIATIVES 
[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder] 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
1. A brief outline of the Company's CSR policy, including overview of the projects or programmes proposed to be 
undertaken and reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programmes: 

 
In line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has framed its CSR policy towards enhancing welfare 

measures of the society and the same has been approved by the CSR Committee of the Board. The Company also give 
preference to the local area and areas around which it operates for spending the amount earmarked for CSR activities. The 

Company has proposed to undertake activities as mentioned under Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, inter-alia, 
activities relating to Rural Development, Promoting Education and Health Care. The Company's CSR policy is placed on its 

website and the web-link for the same is http://www.manaksiasteels.com/upload/media/corporate-policies/Corporate-
Social-Responsibility-Policy.pdf 

 
2. The composition of CSR Committee of the Board as on 31st March, 2020 is as under: 

 

Mr Suresh Kumar Agrawal Non-Executive Director 

Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri  Independent Director 

Mrs. Smita Khaitan* Independent Director 

Mr. Varun Agrawal Managing Director 

 
* Mrs. Smita Khaitan has been appointed as the member of the Committee w.e.f. 16.07.2019. 
 
3. Average net profit of the Company for the last three financial years: 

 
The average net profit for the last three Financial Years is Rs. 5739.23 Lacs. 

 
4. The prescribed CSR expenditure  at 2% of the amount as in item no. 3 above is Rs. 38.26 Lacs. 

 

5. Details of CSR activities/projects undertaken during the Year : 
 

a. Total amount to be spent for the Financial Year 2019-20: Rs. 38.26 Lacs 

b. Amount unspent, if any: Rs. 3.15 Lacs 
c. Manner in which the amount spent during the Financial Year 2019-20:  

                     (Rs. In Lacs) 
Sr. 
No 

CSR Project or 
activity 
identified 

Sector in which 
the project is 
covered  

Projects or Programs 

(1) Local area or other 
(2) The State and 

District where the 
projects or 
programs were 
undertaken 

Amount 
outlay 
(budget) 
project or 
programmes
wise 

Amount spent on 
the projects or 
programmes 

Sub-heads: 

1) Direct 
Expenditure on 
projects or 
programmes 

2) Overheads 

Cumulative 
expenditure 
upto the 
reporting 
period i.e. 
FY 2019-20 

Amount spent 
Direct or through 
implementing 
agency 

1. Promotion of  
Education  

 

 
 

Promoting 
Education 

Kolkata, West 
Bengal and other 

state  

33.00 32.11 32.11 Implementing 
Agency-Shri 

Nandlal Bajoria 

Mahavidyalaya
,  Friends of 

Tribal Society 
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Sr. 
No 

CSR Project or 
activity 
identified 

Sector in which the 
project is covered  

Projects or Programs 
(1) Local area or 

other 
(2) The State and 

District where 
the projects or 
programs were 
undertaken 

Amount 
outlay 
(budget) 
project or 
programmes 
wise 

Amount spent on 
the projects or 
programmes 
Sub-heads: 
1) Direct 

Expenditure 
on projects or 
programmes 

2) Overheads 

Cumulative 
expenditure 
upto the 
reporting 
period i.e. FY 
2019-20 

Amount spent 
Direct or through 
implementing 
agency 

2. Promotion of 
Nationally 

Recognised 
Sports  

Promoting sports  Kolkata  3.50 2.00 2.00 Implementing 
Agency- East 

Bengal Club 

3. Vocational 
Skills 

 

Enhancing 
vocational skills 

West Bengal 2.00 1.00 1.00 Implementing 
Agency- Asha 

Bhavan Centre 

 
Total 

 
38.50 

 
35.11 

35.11 
 

1.  
6. In case the  Company has failed to spend 2% of the average net profit of the last 3 Financial Years or any part thereof, 
reasons for not spending the amount in its Board Report: 

 
The Company has spent Rs. 35.11 Lacs towards CSR activities out of the statutory requirements of Rs. 38.26 Lacs. The 

shortfall of Re. 3.15 Lacs could not be spent before 31st March, 2020 due to the sudden nationwide lockdown to combat the 

outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic.  
 

7. Responsibility statement by the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in 
compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company:  

 
The implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company. 

 

  

 

        Varun Agrawal     Suresh Kumar Agrawal  
Place: Kolkata                            Managing Director    Chairman of CSR Committee  

Date: 15th July, 2020             DIN: 00441271              DIN: 00520769  
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ANNEXURE: G 
 

INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5 OF THE 
COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 
 

1. Ratio of Remuneration of each Director / KMP to the median remuneration of all the employees of the Company for 
the year 2020 

 
Median Remuneration of all the employees of the Company:  Rs. 2,07,207 

Percentage increase in Median Remuneration of all the employees:  15.38 

Number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company:  167 

 
 

Name of the Directors  

and KMP 

Remuneration 

(Rs./ Lakhs) 

% increase in 

remuneration in FY 

2019-20 

Ratio to median 

Remuneration of all 

employees FY 18-19 FY 19-20 

Executive Director 

Mr. Varun Agrawal 240.00 240.00 - 115.83:1 

Non Executive Directors  

Mr. Suresh Kumar Agrawal* 0.57 0.43 - 0.21:1 

Mr. Mrinal Kanti Pal* 0.54 0.30 - 0.14:1 

Independent Directors 

Dr. Kali Kumar Chaudhuri* 0.87 0.73 - 0.35:1 

Mr. Ajay Kumar Chakraborty* 0.39 0.31 - 2.45:1 

Mrs. Smita Khaitan* 0.86 0.73 - 0.35:1 

Mr. Ramesh Kumar Maheshwari % - 0.53 - 0.26:1 

Other KMPs     

Mr. Vineet Agrawal 
- Chief Executive Officer 

228.00 228.00 - 110.03:1 

Mr. Rajesh Singhania  
- Chief Financial Officer 

12.18 14.25 16.95 6.87:1 

Mr. Ajay Sharma 
- Company Secretary 

4.60 5.07 10.32 2.45:1 

 
Note(s):  
*Independent Directors and Non-Executive Directors of the Company are entitled only for sitting fee as per the statutory 

provisions and within the limits. The details of sitting fees of Non-Executive Directors are provided in the Report on Corporate 
Governance and are governed by the Remuneration Policy of the Company, as provided in the Annual Report. In view of this, 

the calculation of percentage increase in remuneration of Independent Directors and Non-Executive Directors would not be 
relevant and hence not provided. 

 

% Inducted in the Board w.e.f. 16th July, 2019 
 

2. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the 
last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification 
thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:  

 
There is no increase of remuneration of managerial personnel during the last financial year. 

 
Note: for the purpose of Managerial Personnel, Managing Director is only included.  
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3. It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid to all Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and employees during the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2020 is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company. 
 

B) Statement as per Rule 5 (2) and 5 (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014: 
 

Sl. No. Particulars 

i) 
The details of the top ten Employees based on remuneration drawn during the FY 2019-20: 

 
SN. Name of the 

Employee 
Designation Remuneration 

Drawn 
Nature of 
Employment  

Qualification 
and 

Experience 

(years) 

Date of 
Joining 

Age 
(years) 

Last 
Employment  

Percentage 
of Shares 

held in 

Com pany 

Related to 
Director or 

manager 

of 
Com pany, 

if any 

1) Mr. Varun  
Agrawal 

Managing 
Director 

2,40,00,000/- Permanent  Commerce 
Graduate 

and  

15 years 

17.11.2014 37 Manaksia 
Limited 

19.4727% Suresh 
Kumar 

Agrawal – 

Father  

2) Mr. Vineet  
Agrawal 

Chief  
Executive 

Officer  

2,28,00,000/- Permanent  Commerce 
Graduate 

and  
22 years 

17.11.2014 44 Manaksia 
Aluminium 

Com pany 
Limited 

Nil None 

3) Mr. Santosh  

Agrawal 

President 

(Export-
Import)  

84,30,800/- Permanent  B.E, PGDBM 

and  
38 years 

01.01.2017 62 Manaksia 

Limited 

0.0002% None 

4) Mr. Lalit Kumar 

Modi 

Sr. Vice 

President  

84,30,800/- Permanent  FCA, 

AICWA, 

B.Com (H) 
and   

41 years 

01.01.2017 65 Manaksia 

Limited 

0.0038% None 

5) Mr. Khagendra 
Kumar Saha 

Sr. Manager 
(Factory) 

17,38,802/- Permanent  Phd. i n 
Chemistry 

and 41 Years 

01.04.2013 69 Manaksia 
Limited 

Nil None 

6) Mr. Santosh 

Kumar Agrawal 

GM. Cor p. 

Admn. 

14,24,619/- Permanent  B.Com(H) 

and 35 years 

23.11.2014 57 Manaksia 

Limited 

0.0002% None 

7) Mr. Rajesh  
Singhania 

C.F.O. 14,24,524/- Permanent  ACA, 
B.Com(H) 

and 31 years 

23.11.2014 53 Manaksia 
Limited 

0.0000% None 

8) Mr. Anirudha 
Guha  

Vice-
President  

12,84,620/- Permanent  M. Com 
and 38 years 

01.01.2017 58 Manaksia 
Limited 

0.0006% None 

9) Mr. Ajit Kumar 
Gupta  

Sr. Manager 
(Export) 

11,69,858/- Permanent  B.com (H), 
MBA 

(International 

Marketing) 
25 years 

 

10.09.2015 51 Manaksia 
Limited 

Nil None 

10) Mr. Indrajit  
Guha 

Sr . 
Manager  
(Elect) 

11,49,070/- Permanent Diploma in 
Electr ical 
Engineer ing 
and  
32 years 

23.11.2014 54 Manaksia 
Limited 

0.0006% None 
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ii) There were no employees employed throughout the Financial Year (FY) 2019-20 who was in receipt of 
remuneration during FY 2019-20, in the aggregate was not less than Rs. 1.02 crore. 

 

iii) There were no employees employed for a part of the Financial Year (FY) 2019-20 who were in receipt of 

remuneration for such part during FY 2019-20 at a rate which, in the aggregate was not less than Rs. 8.50 lacs 
per month. 

 

iv) There were no employees employed throughout the financial year 2019-20 or for a part thereof, who were in  

receipt of remuneration during the FY 2019-20 or for part thereof which, in the aggregate, or as the case may 
be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, was in excess of that drawn by the Managing Director and holds by 

himself/herself or along with his/her spouse and dependent children, not less than 2 (Two) percent of the 
equity shares of the Company. 

Note: For purpose of above point no. (B)(ii)(iii) & (iv), the term employee excludes Managing Director. 
 

  
 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  
 

 
 

Place: Kolkata  
Date : 15th July, 2020 

 
 

                        Varun Agrawal 
               Managing Director  

                   DIN: 00441271 

 
 

       Mrinal Kanti Pal 
      Director  

                  DIN: 00867865  
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

Economic Overview 

The spread of COVID - 19 has had severe adverse effect on businesses around the world. In many countries, including India, 

there has been serious disruption to regular business activities due to lockdowns, disruptions in transportation, supply chain, 

travel bans, quarantines, social distancing and other emergency measures. The COVID - 19 pandemic continues to spread 
around the world. As a result of this pandemic, global economy is projected to contract sharply by 3 percent in 2020, a much 

worse scenario than the 2008–09 financial crisis. The offices of the Company were under nationwide lockdown since March 24, 
2020. As a result of the lockdown the operations of the Company as at end of March, 2020 has been impacted. The Management 

is monitoring the situation and operations have since been resumed in a  phased manner taking into account directives from the 
Central and State Government. The Company has evaluated its liquidity position and of recoverability and carrying values of 

its assets. In a baseline scenario--which assumes that the pandemic fades in the second half of 2020 and containment efforts can 

be gradually unwound—the global economy is projected to grow in 2021 as economic activity normalizes, helped by policy 
support. The impact of the global health pandemic might be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of the 

Board Report and the Management will closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions. 
 

In the Pre pandemic times, the pace of global economic activity during the first three quarters of 2019 remained weak, after 
slowing down sharply in the last three quarters of 2018. Momentum in manufacturing activity, in particular, weakened 

substantially. Rising trade and political tensions around the world have increased uncertainty about the future of the global 

trading system and international cooperation, taking a toll on business confidence, investment decisions, and global trade. A 
notable shift toward increased monetary policy accommodation had cushioned the impact of these tensions on financial market 

sentiment and activity, while a generally resilient service sector has supported employment growth. However amid the 
ongoing slowdown, COVID - 19 has further pushed the world towards negative growth. 

 
India saw a sharp decline in its growth rate in the July-September quarter of 2019, when Gross Domestic Product (GDP) was at 

its lowest in 7 years at 4.5 percent. Several sectors such as real estate, aviation, automobile and construction sectors suffered a 

constant decline in demand. On the other hand, the Banking sector and financial services witnessed serious crisis due to rising 
NPAs & bad loans and compressed credit limits. This economic slowdown could be attributed to weakened investments and 

declining consumer demand. To revive the Indian economy and improve its growth rate, the Central Government announced 
and undertook several measures and initiatives. 

Organisations such as World Bank, International Monetary Fund (IMF) and Moody’s had repeatedly cut down the GDP 

Growth rate in their forecasts. The most recent one was the Moody’s cut of India’s Sovereign Credit Rating Outlook to 

‘Negative’ from ‘Stable’. 

Industry Structure and Developments 
In 2020, the global finished steel market was weighed down by a continuation of last year’s weaker end-consumption rates, 
with some bright spots coming in the longer term. In some ways, 2019 looked very similar to 2018, in the world’s steel markets 

as momentum continued to slow from the supercharged year of 2017. 

 
World Crude Steel production stood at 1869.9 Million Tonnes during 2019, up by 3.4% over 2018, based on data released by the 

World Steel Association. India was the second largest Crude Steel producer and recorded a production of 111.245 Million 
Tonnes with growth of 1.8% during this period as compared to 2018.  
 

Government of India’s vision to achieve a $5 trillion economy by 2024, entails investments in several steel intensive sectors like 
infrastructure, housing for all, 100% electrification, piped water for all, etc. The growth potential for the sector is thus immense 

and the domestic steel consumption will increase significantly in line with this vision. It is, therefore, important to ensure that 
this demand is served through a robust domestic steel industry. The Ministry of Steel alongside the CPSEs have, therefore, 

undertaken several initiatives to create a globally competitive steel sector. 
 

India is also a leading producer of Sponge Iron with a host of coal-based units, located in the mineral-rich States  of the country. 

India has been the world’s largest Sponge Iron producer every year since 2003. India is also an important producer of Pig Iron. 
Post-liberalization, with setting up several units in the private sector, which have reduced imports drastically as well as India 

has turned out to be a net exporter of Pig Iron, with the private sector accounted for a lion’s  share of total production of pig 

Iron in the country. 
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According to a recent report from ratings agency India Ratings (Ind Ra) domestic steel makers are likely to face muted demand 

and oversupply which would lead to suppressed steel prices post the COVID - 19 lockdown. Besides, they are also expected to 
face issues with availability of workforce and logistics movement. Ind-Ra further said the nationwide lockdown has aggravated 

the challenges for the steel sector and it has already revised the sector outlook from stable to negative for the financial year 
2020-21. With the relaxation in lockdown across India, Indian steel players will look to gradually increase capacity utilizations, 

though logistic constraints would remain, due to non availability of transport fleet. 
 

Domestic steel demand in FY21 is likely to drop by around 12-15 per cent year-on-year with end-use industries  being closed 

down and limited demand growth expected over the near term. Demand from infrastructure, construction and real estate 
sectors is likely to be subdued in first half of 2020-21 with the lockdown in April-June and the monsoon season over July-

September. Further, the demand from automobile, white goods and capital goods sectors is likely to reduce with consumers 
deferring discretionary spends in the near term. 

 
Ind Ra also expects an inventory build-up primarily of intermediate/semi steel products with downstream facilities of most 

players being closed during the lockdown. Large producers also kept their blast furnaces operational at lower capacity of 35-50 

per cent due to the high cost of restarting the furnace in case it was to be shut. However, small and mid-scale producers with 
induction/electric arc furnaces remained completely shut during the lockdown. 

 
 
Business 

Manaksia Steels Limited continues to manufacture value added secondary steel products and is catering to the increasing 
global demands of the housing, Industry and infrastructure sectors.  

The Company manufactures and sells value added steel products comprising Cold Rolled Sheets used in interior and exterior 

panels of automobiles, buses and commercial vehicles, Galvanized Corrugated Sheets which find use in the rural housing 

sector and factory buildings and Galvanized Plain Sheets, used in the manufacture of containers and water tanks and Color 
Coated (Pre-painted) Coils and Sheets for sale to construction, housing, consumer durable and other industries. The principal 

raw material for the products of the Company is Hot Rolled Steel  Coils. 

The Company has a 120,000 MTPA Steel Cold Rolling Plant at Haldia for manufacture of Cold Rolled Coils and Sheets and 

continuous Galvanizing plants at Bankura (30,000 MTPA) and Haldia (60,000 MTPA). Both the plants have a strong Quality 
Management System with in-house testing facilities and are ISO 9001:2015 certified.  The Company has facilities at Haldia for 

further value addition of Steel and Aluminium Products, where Galvanized Steel Sheets and Cold Rolled Aluminium Sheets 
are pre-painted /colour coated in a 48,000 MTPA color coating line. The Company has also facilities for Roll Forming/ 

Profiling for direct supply to projects for industrial roofing as a part of such value addition.  

Overview of Operations 

Results 

During the year under review, the revenue of your Company on a standalone basis stood at Rs. 48779.57 lacs, as compared to 
Rs. 68870.71 lacs during the last financial year. During the year, the Company earned a net profit of Rs. 870.18 lacs as compared 

to a profit of Rs. 1031.66 lacs during the last financial year. The decrease in turnover was due to reduction in steel prices to the 
tune of 20-25% during the year, low demand in domestic market and a fall in exports during the year as a result of week global 

economic scenario and rising trade and political tensions around the world. The decrease in profit was due to reduced turnover 
and rising costs. The profitability was also affected by more competitive market and forex loss due to high volatility of 

currency market.  

Risks and Concerns 

Your Company continues to look for growth opportunities and new markets in all the products. The COVID - 19 pandemic has 
had a devastating effect on the global economy and all commercial and industrial activities. With the outbreak of COVID - 19 in 

India, the Government took various precautionary measures to contain the spread of the disease which included partial and 

complete lockdowns. As a result, the operations of the Company and demand of its products have been adversely effected. The 
Company is also exposed to a number of market risks arising from its normal business activities. These risks include changes in 

prices of the products dealt with, foreign currency exchange rate, interest rate which may unfavourably impact the Company’s 
financial assets, liabilities and/or future cash flows. 
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The Company continues to mitigate these risks by careful planning of optimum sales mix, active treasury management, 

product diversification, innovation and penetration in different markets, both domestic and international to the extent possible. 
Further cost saving measures across all segments of the Company, would help in improving the margins in an otherwise 

difficult market.  
 

Opportunities and Threats 
 

A diversified product portfolio and considerably wide geographical reach, both domestic and international, have helped the 
Company to significantly de-risk its business and meet the risks with suitable precaution. The Company is focused on 

enhancing value added products. However, under the present circumstances, in view of the COVID - 19 pandemic prevailing 
in today, the Management is studying the situation carefully, before venturing into any new markets and products. 

Improvement in safety performance is of utmost priority, for which the Company has constantly been initiating measures to 

avert accidents.  
 

Internal Control Systems 
 

The Company has an effective system of internal controls which helps it to maintain both internal controls and procedures to 
ensure all transactions are authorised, recorded and reported correctly and also ensure disclosure and protection of physical 

and intellectual property.  The Company has appointed a firm of Chartered Accountants as Internal Auditors who 
independently evaluate the adequacy of the internal controls on a regular basis. For transparency and effectiveness, the 

management duly considers and takes appropriate action on the recommendations made by Statutory Auditors, Internal 
Auditors and by Management Committee / Audit Committee of the Board of Directors. The company is running on SAP 

Platform in order to have proper internal control procedure with the required authorization and “maker and checker” concept. 
This helps in correct recording of transactions and elimination and timely rectification of errors. The Company has appointed 

consultants/ professionals to conduct Cost Audit and Secretarial Audit and observations made, if any, are reviewed by the 

Management periodically and corrective actions taken.  
Human Resources 
 

Employee relations continued to be cordial throughout the year and recruitments were made commensurate with the needs of 
business. The Company employs about 167 people in all its facilities. 

 
Finance Cost 
 

Finance Cost, during the year under review stood at Rs 157.51 lacs, as compared to Rs 272.59 lacs during the last financial year. 

The decrease in finance cost is attributable to decreased availment of cash credit and buyers’ credit facilities from the banks. 

Key Financial Ratios 
 

Key Financial Ratios of the Company during the year under review in comparison with the immediately previous financial 

year: 
 

Ratios FY 2019-20 FY 2018-19 

Debtor Turnover 7.87 7.90 

Inventory turnover 5.75 6.61 

Interest Coverage Ratio 7.20 7.06 

Current Ratio  1.86 2.24 

Debt Equity Ratio  - - 

Operating Profit Margin (%) 1.67 2.00 

Net Profit Margin (%) 1.77 1.49 

Change in return on Net Worth  4.50 5.53 

 

The demand of the steel in domestic market throughout the financial year continued to be low and the global industrial impact 
also continued to be negative. As a cumulative result of that the sale realization and operating profit margin were low 

compared to the previous year. However, the net profit margin has improved due to continued effort of the management. The 

Current ratio has marginally declined compared to previous year due to current short term borrowings availed during the 
year.  
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Cautionary Statement 

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis, describing the company’s objectives, outlook and expectation, may 
constitute “Forward Looking Statements” within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may differ 

from those expressed or implied expectations, projections etc. Several factors make a significant difference to the company’s 
operations, including climatic conditions, present uncertain economic scenario, view COVID - 19 affecting demand and supply, 

Government regulations, taxation, natural calamity and other such factors over which the company does not have any direct 
control. 
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FORM NO. AOC- 2 

 

Particulars of contracts/arrangements with related parties  

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the  

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 

This Form pertains to the disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties 
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under fourth 

proviso thereto 
 
1.  Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: 
 

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended March 31, 2020 which are not 

at arm’s length basis. 
 

2.  Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis: 
The details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended March 31, 2020 which 
are at arm’s length basis. 

 
  

Name(s) of the related party and nature of 
relationship 

Sumo Steels Limited, entity over which 
KMP’s and their relatives have significant 

influence 
 

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions Sale of raw materials like Hot Rolled Coils, 
Spares, etc.   

 

Duration of the 

contracts/arrangements/transactions 
 

During the FY 2019-20 

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements 

or transactions including the value, if any 

Monetary value of the aggregate transactions 

during the FY 2019-20 was Rs. 229.95 Crore at 

prevailing market price and on general 
commercial terms of the Company. 

 

Amount paid as advances, if any Not Applicable 

 

 
                                   For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 
 

Place: Kolkata                                                 Varun Agrawal   Mrinal Kanti Pal 

Dated: 15th July, 2020                                               Managing Director  Director 
                                             DIN: 00441271   DIN: 00867865 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

 

To the Members of Manaksia Steels Limited  

 

Report on the audit of Standalone Ind AS financial statements 

 

Opinion 

We have audited the standalone Ind AS financial statements of Manaksia Steels Limited (“the Company”), which comprise  

the balance sheet as at 31st March 2020, and the statement of profit and loss including Other Comprehensive Income, 

statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 

including a  summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended on that date 
(hereinafter referred to as “Ind AS financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone Ind 

AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and 

give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read 

with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and profit and total comprehensive 

income, changes in equity and  its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our 
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind  

AS financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics  
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence ethical requirements that are 

relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the 

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to Note 44 to the standalone financial statement, which describes the uncertainties and potential impact of 
the Covid-19 pandemic of the Company’s operation and results as assessed by the management. The actual results may differ 

from such estimates depending upon future developments. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 

statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2020. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 

matters.  

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. For each  

matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context. 
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Revenue from Sale of Goods  

The Company recognizes revenue when control of 
the goods is transferred to the customer at an amount 

that reflects the consideration to which the Company 

expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods. As 

described in the accounting policy in note 2(ii) and as 
reflected in note 27 to the Ind AS Standalone  

financial statements, revenue from sale of goods is 

measured at fair value of the consideration received 

or receivable, net of returns and allowances and trade 

discounts.  

Considering the judgment and estimates involved in 
revenue recognition, it is considered to be a key audit 

matter. 

 

Our audit procedure includes the following:  

 Considered the adequacy of the company’s 
revenue recognition policy and its compliance in 

terms of Ind AS 115 “Revenue from contracts with 

customers’ 

 Assessed the design and tested the operating 
effectiveness of the internal financial controls 

related to revenue recognition. 

 Performed sample tests of individual sales 
transaction and traced to sales invoices and other 
related documents. In respect of the samples 

selected, tested and the revenue has been 

recognized in accordance with Ind AS 115. 

 We discussed and obtained an understanding from 
the management on the key assumptions applied 

and inputs used in estimating provisions for 

discounts, sales incentives and sales returns and 

compared the same with the past trends and the 

provision made by the management. 

Assessed the relevant disclosure made in the 

standalone Ind AS financial statement. 

 

We have determined that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our report. 
 

Information Other than the Standalone Ind AS financial statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 

included in Other Section of Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 

form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information  
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone Ind 

AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS financial statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS financial statements that gives a true and fair view of the 

financial position, financial performance, Changes in Equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards  prescribed under section 133 of the 

Act. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 

application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial  controls that were 

operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements that gives a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due  

to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 

but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Standalone Ind AS financial statements 

Our objectives  are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 

always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material  

if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit. We also:  

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 

resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013 we are also responsible for 

expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial control system in place and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.  
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 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind 

AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 

on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may 

cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions 

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 

bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 

matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 

circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of 

doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Other Matter 

The comparative standalone Ind AS financial information of the Company for the corresponding year ended 31st  March, 2019 
were audited by the predecessor auditor who had expressed an unmodified opinion vide their report dated 30th May, 2019 and 

reliance has been placed by us on the same for the purpose of this report.  

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 
I. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India 

in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 and according to the information and 

explanations given to us and also on the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate, we give in the “Annexure 
A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

 
II. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

 
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 

were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

 
b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 

from our examination of those books;  
 

 
c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of 

Changes in Equity and the Statements of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of 

account; 
 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 
specified under section 133 of the Act read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014; 
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e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 and taken on record by 

the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020, from being appointed as a 
director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act; 

 
f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. 
 

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of 

section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 
 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration 
paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

 
h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 

the explanations given to us: 
 

i.   The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial 
statements (Refer Note no. 35 of the standalone Ind AS financial statements). 

 
ii.   The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 

were any material foreseeable losses;  

` 
iii.   There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company. 
 

 
   For Agrawal Tondon & Co. 

 Chartered Accountants 

 Firm Registration No.- 329088E 
  

  
 Kaushal Kejriwal  

Place: Kolkata  (Partner) 
Dated: 15th July, 2020 Membership No. 308606 

UDIN: 20308606AAAACA6846 
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  Annexure -A to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Manaksia Steels Limited (the Company’) 

on the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended on March 31, 2020. We report that: 

 
i. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 

situation of property, plant and equipment.  

 (b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment by which 
property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with 

this programme, certain property, plant and equipment were verified during the year and no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is 

reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. 

 (c) According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 

Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company. 

ii.  The inventories have been physically verified during the year by the management at regular intervals. In our 
opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed 

on physical verification . 

iii.  The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability 

Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(‘the Act’). Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii)a, 3(iii)b and 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

iv  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with 
the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing 

guarantees and securities, as applicable.  
 

v.  The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the 
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the 

Order are not applicable to the Company. 

vi.  We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules prescribed 

by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and 
are of the opinion that prima-facie the prescribed records have been made and maintained. We have, however, 

not made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete. 

Vii  According to the information and explanations given to us in respect of statutory dues:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(a) The Company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees 
State Insurance, Income Tax, Service Tax, Sales Tax, Value Added Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Cess, 

GST and other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities during the year. According to the information 
and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the aforesaid dues were outstanding 

as at 31st March, 20 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax and duty of customs 
which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute. However, according 

to information and explanations given to us, the following dues of service tax, sales tax, duty of excise and value 
added tax have not been deposited by the Company on account of disputes: 

Sl. Name of the 
Statute  

Nature of 
dues 

Amount Rs.     
(In Lacs)  

Financial year to 
which the Amount 

Relates 

Forum where dispute 
is pending 

1 Central Excise 

Act1944 

Excise duty 

demand 

2.80 2015-16 AC CGST & CX 

Bankura -1 Bankura 

Commissionerate 

2 Central Excise 

Act 1944 

Excise duty 

demand 

0.80 2016-17 Ac CGST & Cx 

Bankura -1 Bankura 

Coi/Missionerate 

3 Central Excise 

Act, 1944 

Excise duty 

demand 

1.38 2015-16 Comm. (Appeal) – II 

4 Income Tax 

Act,1961 

 

Income Tax 

demand 

 

            58.37  

 

2015-16 

 

Assistant 

Commissioner of 

Income Tax Circle 

3(1), Kolkata  

 
 

   

viii.  In our opinion and according to information and explanations given by the management, we are of the opinion 

that the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to financial institution and banks. The Company 
does not have any loans or borrowings from Government and has not issued any debentures. 

ix.  To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 

instruments) and has not taken any term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the order is not 
applicable. 

x.  According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the 

Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.  

xi.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid/provided for managerial 

remunerations in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Sec 197 read with 
Schedule V to the Act. 

xii.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi 
company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.  

 
xiii.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 

Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where 
applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone Ind AS financial statements as 

required by the applicable Indian accounting standards. 

 
 

xiv.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records, the 
Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 

debentures during the year.  
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xv.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with  

them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.  

 
xvi.  The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.  

 

   For Agrawal Tondon & Co. 
 Chartered Accountants 

 Firm Registration No.- 329088E 
  

  
 Kaushal Kejriwal  

Place: Kolkata  (Partner) 

Dated: 15th July, 2020 Membership No. 308606 
UDIN: 20308606AAAACA6846 
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  Annexure -B to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 

(“the Act”)  

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Manaksia Steels Limited (“the Company”) as of 

March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date.  

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 

control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of  

Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 

adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its  

business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds  

and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 

information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.  

Auditors’ Responsibility  

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our 

audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 

Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 

143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an 
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and 

the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 

such controls operated effectively in all material respects.  

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 

reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 

material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the  

assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 

the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.  

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance 

with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those 

policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect  

the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and 

that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and 

directors of the company; and (3 ) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.  
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion 
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. 

Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to  

the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 

or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.  

Opinion  

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based 

on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the  

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 
   For Agrawal Tondon & Co. 

 Chartered Accountants 
 Firm Registration No.- 329088E 

  
  

 Kaushal Kejriwal  
Place: Kolkata  (Partner) 

Dated: 15th July, 2020 Membership No. 308606 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

 

To the Members of Manaksia Steels Limited 

 

Report on the audit of Consolidated Ind AS financial statements 

 

 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Manaksia Steels Limited (“the Holding 
Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the 

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other 

Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for 

the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  

(hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated Ind AS financial statements”).  

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the a foresaid consolidated 

Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act 

read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting 

principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and 

consolidated profit, consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and  its consolidated cash flows 

for the year ended on that date. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements  section of our report. We are independent of the 
Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with 

the independence ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements under 

the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is  

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.  

 

 

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to Note 46 to the Consolidated financial statement, which describes the uncertainties and potential impact 
of the Covid-19 pandemic of the Group’s operation and results as assessed by the management. The actual results may differ 

from such estimates depending upon future developments. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 

statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2020. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 

financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 
matters.   

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. For each  

matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context. 
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Revenue from Sale of Goods  

The Group recognizes revenue when control of the 

goods is transferred to the customer at an amount 
that reflects the consideration to which the Group 

expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods. As 

described in the accounting policy in note 2(iv) and 

as reflected in note 27 to the Ind AS Consolidated 

financial statements, revenue from sale of goods is 

measured at fair value of the consideration received 
or receivable, net of returns and allowances and trade 

discounts.  

Considering the judgment and estimates involved in 

revenue recognition, it is considered to be a key audit 

matter. 

 

Our audit procedure includes the following:  

 Considered the adequacy of the Group’s revenue 
recognition policy and its compliance in terms of 

Ind AS 115 “Revenue from contracts with 
customers’ 

 Assessed the design and tested the operating 
effectiveness of the internal financial controls 

related to revenue recognition. 

 Performed sample tests of individual sales 
transaction and traced to sales invoices and other 

related documents. In respect of the samples 

selected, tested and the revenue has been 

recognized in accordance with Ind AS 115. 

 We discussed and obtained an understanding from 
the management on the key assumptions applied 
and inputs used in estimating provisions for 

discounts, sales incentives and sales returns and 

compared the same with the past trends and the 

provision made by the management. 

Assessed the relevant disclosure made in the 
consolidated Ind AS financial statement. 

   We have determined that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our report. 

 

Information Other than the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

 

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the  

information included Other Section of Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report  

thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 

form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information identified above, compare with the financial statements of the subsidiaries audited by the other auditors, to the 

extent it related to these entities and, in doing so, place reliance on the work of the other auditors  and consider whether the  

other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements  or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 

appears to be materially misstated. Other information so far as it relates  to the subsidiaries is traced from their financial 

statements audited by other auditors. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 

required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Responsibility of the Management and those charge with governance for the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements 

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with  respect to 

preparation of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial 

position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated total comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and 

consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in  

India. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of the 

adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for 

preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal  

financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,  

relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of 

the consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the 

Group are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters  

related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 

Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the financial 

reporting process of the Group.  

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements as a whole are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 

always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material  

if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 

the basis of these Consolidated Ind AS financial statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit. We also:  

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 

that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures  
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing 

our opinion on whether the Holding Company has an adequate internal financial control system in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls.  

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.  

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

significant doubt on the ability of the Group’s to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 

Consolidated Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.  
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 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business 
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. We are 

responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities  

included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other 

entities included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such 

other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by 

them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.  
 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 

audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control  that we identify during our 
audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements  
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 

to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 

significance in the audit of financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe  

these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 

extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse  

consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 

Other Matters 

We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of a subsidiary, incorporated outside India, whose financial 

statements / financial information reflect total assets of Rs.2,947 lakhs as at 31st March, 2020, total revenue of Rs.503 lakhs, 

net cash flows amounting to Rs.162 lakhs and net profit after tax of Rs.238 lakhs for the year ended 31st March, 2020, as 

considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. These financial statements and other financial information have 

been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the management, and our opinion on the 

consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this  

subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid 

subsidiary, is based solely on the reports of the other auditor. 

The accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial results include unaudited financial statements and other unaudited 

financial information in respect of three step-down subsidiaries, incorporated outside India, whose financial results include, 

total assets of Rs.12,818 lakhs as at 31st March, 2020, total revenue of Rs.4,744 lakhs, net cash flows amounting to Rs.1,076 

lakhs and net profit/(loss) after tax of Rs.(121) lakhs for the year ended 31st March, 2020, as considered in the consolidated 

Ind AS financial statements. These unaudited financial statements and other unaudited financial information have been  

furnished to us by the management. Our opinion, in so far as it relates to the affairs of these subsidiaries, is based solely on 

such unaudited financial statements and other unaudited financial information. In our opinion and according to the 

information and explanation given to us by the management, these financial statements and other financial information are  

not material to the Group. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter 

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  

below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the 

other auditors and the financial statements / financial information certified by the Management. 
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Other Matter 

The comparative consolidated Ind AS financial information of the Holding Company for the corresponding year ended 31st  

March, 2019 were audited by the predecessor auditor who had expressed an unmodified opinion vide their report dated 30th 
May, 2019 and reliance has been placed by us on the same for the purpose of this report.  

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

  As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

 
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 

were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements. 
 

 
b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated 

Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the 

reports of the other auditors.  
 

 
c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive 

income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the 

consolidated Ind AS financial statements. 

 
 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued there under.  

 
 

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 31st March, 

2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
31st March, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

 
 

f. The Holding Company does not have any subsidiary incorporated in India and accordingly separate report on the 
adequacy of the internal financial controls of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls have not 

been annexed to this report; 
 

 

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of 
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 

 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration 

paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 
 

 

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 

the explanations given to us: 
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i.   The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its  

financial position in its financial statements (Refer Note no. 35 of the Consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements). 

 

ii.   The Group did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were 
any material foreseeable losses;  

 
iii.   There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company. 

 

   For Agrawal Tondon & Co. 
 Chartered Accountants 

 Firm Registration No.- 329088E 

  
  

 Kaushal Kejriwal  
Place: Kolkata  (Partner) 

Dated: 15th July, 2020 Membership No. 308606 
UDIN:20308606AAAADA7777 
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